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Part A:
General
Information
General Information
Registered name

Gauteng Film Commission (GFC)

Registration number

2001/013031/08

Physical address

56 Main Street
Johannesburg
2108

Postal address

PO Box 61601
Marshalltown
2107

Telephone number

+27 11 833 0409

Fax number

+27 11 883 0282

E-mail address

info@gautengfilm.org.za

Website address

www.gautengfilm.org.za

External auditors

Auditor-General of South Africa

Bankers

Absa Bank

Company Secretary

Anthea Mokoena
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List of Abbreviations/Acronyms
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GFC

Gauteng Film Commission

CEO

Chief Executive Officer

CPA

Commercial Producers’ Association

DSACR

Department of Sport, Art, Culture and Recreation

EAP

Employee Assistance Programme

EDD

Economic Development Department

GCIA

Gauteng Creative Industry Agency

GDP

Gross Domestic Product

GRAP

Generally Recognised Accounting Practice

HR

Human Resources

HSRC

Human Sciences Research Council

IAS

International Accounting Standards

ICT

Information and Communication Technology

IFRS

International Financial Reporting Standards

IT

Information Technology

King III

King III Report on Corporate Governance

MEC

Member of the Executive Council

MoU

Memorandum of Understanding

NEMISA

National Electronic Media Institute of South Africa

NPC

Non-profit Company

OHS

Occupational Health and Safety

PFMA

Public Finance Management Act

SABC

South African Broadcasting Corporation

SARS

South African Revenue Service

VAT

Valued-Added Tax

ZAR

South African Rand
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Strategic Overview
Vision
Making Gauteng an innovative, world-class hub for the film and television industry.
Mission
To cultivate, facilitate and enhance an environment that allows the film and television industry to play a meaningful role in
the socio-economic development of Gauteng.
Values
Our values complement government’s Batho Pele principles and state that employees are required to uphold:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Respect;
Leadership;
Responsibility;
Responsiveness;
Progressive and innovative thinking;
Passion, excellence and commitment;
People development and empowerment; and
Efficiency, accountability and transparency.

Strategic outcome orientated goals
• To increase the number of local and international film productions using GFC services, i.e. permit facilitation, location
promotion and logistical support.
• To conduct relevant research in order to become a hub of industry-related information.
• To increase the number of jobs created in the film industry through GFC support and facilitation.
• To transform the film industry by increasing enterprise ownership and participation by previously disadvantaged groups,
i.e. black people, women and people with disabilities.
• To contribute to an increase in and access to locally produced films through screenings, workshops, cinema exhibition
and broadcast partnerships with emphasis on under-resourced areas.
• To develop and maintain effective business processes.
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Legislative and Other
Mandates
The Member of the Executive Council (MEC), in his capacity
as representative of the Department of Sport, Art, Culture and
Recreation (DSACR) of the Gauteng Provincial Legislature,
determined the GFC’s mandate for the 2012/13 financial year
and holds the Board accountable for managing and controlling
operations in compliance with this mandate.
Since the creative industries are seen as an instrument for the
promotion of social cohesion and nation building, the GFC
contributes to Provincial Outcome 12B: To Promote Social
Cohesion and Nation Building which results in empowered,
involved, just and inclusive citizenship. It also supports the
attainment of Outcome 4: Decent Work and Inclusive
Economic Growth.
A business plan and budget for the GFC was submitted to
the DSACR, as required in terms of Section 52 of the Public
Finance Management Act, Act No. 1 of 1999 (PFMA). The
business plan sets out the strategic objectives and performance
criteria of the Commission, which Management is accountable
for achieving within the risk parameters.
The GFC is currently registered as a non-profit company
(NPC) in terms of the Companies Act, Act No. 71 of 2008.
However, it should be noted that a contract exists between
the GFC and the DSACR which stipulates that the GFC should
comply with the PFMA, National Treasury Regulations and
any other government regulations applicable to a public entity.
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Organisational Structure
Chief Executive
Officer (CEO)
Mzwandile Masina

Stakeholder
Relation Manager
Siyabonga Mngoma

Personal Assistant
to the CEO
Khosi Mkefa

Research Manager
Sebastian Ndayi

Senior Manager:
Industry Support
and Development
Thabiso Masudubele

Senior Manager:
Company
Secretary and
Legal Manager
Anthea Mokoena

Projects Manager

Legal Secretary

Desmond Mthembu

Tumi Moncho

Senior Manager:
Marketing
Ncediso Kodwa

Chief Financial
Officer
Elliot Maluleke

Information
Technology (IT)
Manager
Isaac Mokgaphane

Human Resources
(HR) Manager
Lerato Mohoaladi

Marketing
Manager

Finance and
Payroll Manager

Puisano Phatoli

Lazarus Makube

Projects
Co‑ordinator

Communication
Manager

Finance Officer

Receptionist

Nthabeleng Phora

Tumi Ntshingila

Refilwe Nnani

Priscilla Kolwane

Projects
Co‑ordinator
Kgomotso Tabane
Location and
Permit Officer
Nsizwa Mekgwe

IT Officer

HR Officer

Bubele Ngxola

Palai Segone

Office Assistant
Patricia Mkhaliphi

Messenger
Mthunzi Mogagabe
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Foreword by the MEC

“Gauteng has a vibrant
film industry which is
fast becoming a globally
competitive industry
role player.”
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In line with the Gauteng Premier’s commitment to realign
government functions for better efficiency, the Gauteng
Film Commission (GFC) was relocated to the Gauteng
Department of Sport, Art, Culture and Recreation on 01
April 2012. I believe that the consolidation of the creative
industries in the province is a step in the right direction to
establish Gauteng as the preferred destination for major arts
and culture growth and development.
Gauteng has a vibrant film industry which is fast becoming a
globally competitive industry role player. Recently, actress and
advocate of the arts, Florence Masebe, received the award for
Best Actress in a Leading Role for the production, Elelwani, at
the Africa Movie Awards. The film scooped an impressive 11
awards during the ceremony. Several other productions with
strong links to the province won both local and international
awards during the past 12 months, these include, Leila Fourie,
Little One, Gog’ Helen and Blitzpatrollie, to name but a few.
The film industry in the province continues to grow, and a
recent report by the Human Sciences Research Council (HSRC)
Creative Industries Sector, shows that it is 40% cheaper to
make a movie in Gauteng than it is in Europe or the United
States of America. The province is home to more than 70%
of the country’s registered film producers, an estimated twothirds of the national television production houses and some
of the major broadcasting corporations such as DSTV, the
South African Broadcasting Corporation (SABC) and e.tv.
Independent data shows that only 3% of black South Africans
go to the cinema on a regular basis. It is therefore crucial
that the local movie-going culture is nurtured and grown in

new, innovative ways. A number of projects are under way
aimed at growing the province’s movie-going audience. The
conceptualisation of the Gauteng signature event kicked off
in the period under review. This festival will bring key industry
players together to share knowledge, skills and ideas.
Work has commenced to transform the GFC into the Gauteng
Creative Industry Agency (GCIA). The GCIA will serve as
an all-encompassing agency for creative industries (including
film, television, music, fashion, interactive digital media, books
and magazines) to create and maximise their value addition.
In February 2013, the DSACR held the Gauteng Creative
Industries Indaba to consult with industry about the role of
the film sector in the broader creative economy. The feedback
aided the development of the concept paper and business
case for the GCIA, and we are ready to commence with the
legislative process.
I am confident that the creative economy will continue to
play a key role in the drive towards economic opportunities,
while developing the necessary skill and capacity to ensure
that the province becomes a globally competitive city region.

L Maile
Member of the Executive Council: Sport, Art, Culture and Recreation
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Foreword by the Chairperson

“The Commission is
refocusing its strategies
and programmes in order
to address job creation
within the industry.”
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Even though we faced a trying economic environment and
budgetary constraints during the reporting period, I am happy
to report that the Gauteng Film Commission continued to
make headway in terms of its mandate to develop the audiovisual sector in Gauteng.
Strategic overview
Since its relocation to the Gauteng Department of Sport, Art,
Culture and Recreation on 01 April 2012, a new mandate
and business plan have been developed for the GFC. The
Commission now has a broader mandate to develop and
promote the whole audio-visual industry in Gauteng.
The audio-visual industry offers major growth opportunities
to the province’s economy and labour market, yet the strong
growth in the industry in recent years has not necessarily
resulted in new job creation. Since the GFC is mandated to
address industry development, and hence is positioned to
attend to industry needs, the Commission is refocusing its
strategies and programmes in order to address job creation
within the industry.
The GFC Strategic Plan for the next three years (2014–2016)
will focus on supporting emerging filmmakers, while still
delivering film commission services and implementing its
expanded mandate. Various programmes were implemented
during the reporting period to support emerging filmmakers,
promote local films in both the national and international
markets and conduct ongoing research and development.
Among others, a draft Enabling Policy has been formulated,
and a performance management system and scorecard were
developed in line with the Gauteng Growth and Development
Plan. Furthermore, numerous marketing and industry support

development programmes were implemented in the reporting
period.
Strategic relationships
With the aim of fostering a shared industry vision, the GFC
entered into various strategic partnerships which not only
promoted the industry, but also led to industry development.
Some of these affiliations include partnerships with key
educational bodies aimed at skills development; collaborative
marketing campaigns with the National Film and Video Fund
and Film and Publication Board; as well as partnerships with
MNet and e.tv.
Although the budget allocated to the GFC increased to
R23.4 million in the period under review (2011/12: R18.7 million),
it remained difficult to fund all our mandated activities. For
this reason, various strategic partnerships are being pursued
in both the private and public sectors, many of which should
pay dividends in the next financial year.
Challenges faced by the Board
With the GFC’s move to the DSACR, the Board was
accountable for ensuring that the Commission conducts its
business within its new, broader mandate as determined by
the MEC. The Board approved the revised Strategic Plan for
the next three years and has ensured that the GFC complies
with all relevant laws and regulations.
The GFC’s Internal Auditors worked closely with the Board
which approved both the three-year Strategic Internal Audit
Plan and the Annual Internal Audit Plan. The Board is satisfied
that the entity’s risk management and internal controls are
sufficient and effective.
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Foreword by the Chairperson (continued)

Due to the unavailability of Board members, Board and
Board Committee meetings could not take place as planned.
In addition, resignations were not formally communicated,
which complicated the execution of the Board’s mandate.
The year ahead
In the coming financial year the various programmes of the
GFC will continue to invest in collective product knowledge
and the development of core and traditional markets in
order to position the Commission as the leading African
film commission. As mentioned above, funding opportunities
are being pursued through key strategic partnerships, and
agreements with the National Film and Video Foundation, the
Department of Trade and Industry, the Cape Film Commission,
the Durban Film Office and key private sector bodies will be
finalised in 2013/14. Continued engagement with commercial
cinema houses will assist in the expansion of operations to
rural and underprivileged communities.
Acknowledgements
I would like to thank my fellow Board members for their
continued hard work and support during the financial
year. On behalf of the Board, I would also like to express
our appreciation to the CEO, Mzwandile Masina, and his
Management team for their commitment to promoting and
developing the audio-visual industry in Gauteng.

L Kepe
Chairperson of the Board
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Chief Executive Officer’s Overview

“During the period under
review, the GFC has taken great
strides towards repositioning
itself as a significant partner in
the development and marketing
of the province”
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With a broader mandate from the Gauteng Department of
Sport, Arts, Culture and Recreation, which includes developing
the province’s audio-visual industry to its full potential, while
still delivering professional film commission services, the GFC
is in the process of refocusing its strategies and activities in
order to meet these targets. With the bulk of the country’s
creative talent located in Gauteng, it is our responsibility to
nurture and grow this talent base and to promote Gauteng
as the region of choice for film production.
Despite a tight economic environment, the industry continued
to grow and prosper. Many of the films produced in the
province performed well on both the local and international
circuits and received numerous awards.
Overview of achievements
The GFC’s broader mandate implies that its strategic focus
had to change to concentrate more on support programmes
aimed at the development of the province’s independent
filmmaking industry, especially the new generation of black
filmmakers now entering the market. The Commission also
had to realign its programmes with those of the DSACR. This
meant that budget allocations had to be tightly managed in
order to deliver on our mandate. Additional funding will assist
the GFC in making a greater contribution to the development
of creative industries in Gauteng.
Some of the key achievements during the year include the
creation of just under 9 000 permanent and temporary
jobs through film productions and eight skills development
initiatives which benefited 625 individuals. The GFC exceeded
its target for film permit facilitation, issuing 190 permits against
a target of 160. The Commission also supported 18 new
film productions.

Strategies, results and challenges
The GFC is in the process of reviewing its programmes and
strategies to focus more on the development of the broader
audio-visual industry. In the past, the industry has overly relied
on broadcasters, and even though revenue continued to grow,
this did not translate into job creation figures. The continued
volatility of the global economy is impacting on the number
of new, local productions. The challenge is to counter the
decline in new productions in the medium to long term and
to protect the province’s talent pool.
Other challenges include:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Lack of industry transformation;
Lack of skills and co-ordinated industry programmes to
develop scarce skills;
Monopolised distribution channels;
Lower revenue due to the financial situation of the SABC;
Narrow business models in production companies;
Intellectual property structures; and
Lack of investment (especially from the private sector).

During the period under review, the GFC has taken great
strides towards repositioning itself as a significant partner in the
development and marketing of the province, and in driving the
role played by the creative industry in socio-economic growth.
The Commission established key media relationships and
implemented a Marketing and Communication Strategy aimed
at core and tactical markets. It also formed partnerships with
education bodies in the industry to promote skills development.
In addition, the GFC engaged with industry role players on issues
such as the transformation and development of the film sector.
The GFC developed appropriate content and information
management strategies, and also commenced with the
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Chief Executive Officer’s Overview (continued)

compilation of an online database comprising industry data
such as skills, capacity, facilities and studios. It also initiated
targeted sectoral research programmes and strengthened
its planning capacity.
The Commission has the great advantage that it is strategically
positioned to respond to the needs of the audio-visual
industry, and thanks to its renewed focus and strategy, the
GFC continues to play a leadership role in this sector.
Looking into the future
Our strategy up to 2016 will be to focus on content development
support, funding and advisory services, skills development,
audience development, logistical support, distribution and
marketing support, as well as infrastructure support to the
audio-visual industry in Gauteng. During this period significant
emphasis will be placed on supporting emerging filmmakers.
Some short- to medium-term initiatives include investing in
product knowledge so that we can supply the fast-changing
marketplace with innovative, globally competitive products
and services, as well as transform the existing content
distribution channels.
To address the current budget constraints, a team in my
office will be focusing on sourcing additional funding through
strategic partnerships.
Acknowledgements
The period under review saw many strategic changes which
will carry our industry into the future, we thank the DSACR
of the Gauteng Provincial Legislature and the Board for their
guidance in this regard. The achievement of our mandate
would, however, not have been possible without our dedicated
Management team and staff. Thank you for your hard work
during the year. Let’s continue to build on the investment
attractiveness of our resource-rich province and position the
GFC as the leading African film commission.

M Masina
Chief Executive Officer
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Rietvlei Dam Nature Reserve
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The Gautrain at OR Tambo International Airport
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Part B:
Performance
Information
Statement of
Responsibility for
Performance Information
for the year ended 31 March 2013
The Chief Executive Officer (CEO) is responsible for the preparation
of the Gauteng Film Commission’s performance information and
for the judgements made on this information.
The CEO is responsible for establishing and implementing a system
of internal control, designed to provide reasonable assurance as to
the integrity and reliability of performance information.
In my opinion, the performance information fairly reflects the actual
achievements against planned objectives, indictors and targets as
per the Strategic and Annual Performance Plan of the GFC for the
financial year ended 31 March 2013.
The Gauteng Film Commission’s performance information for the
year ended 31 March 2013 has been examined by the AuditorGeneral and his report is presented on pages 59–62.

Photo: MediaClubSouthAfrica.com

The performance information of the GFC, as set out on pages
21–30, was approved by the Board.

M Masina
Chief Executive Officer
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Auditor’s Report:
Predetermined
Objectives
The Auditor-General of South Africa currently performs
the necessary audit procedures on the GFC’s performance
information to provide reasonable assurance in the form of
an audit conclusion. The audit conclusion on the performance
against predetermined objectives is included in the Report
to Management, and material findings are reported under
the heading Predetermined Objectives, in the Report on
Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements in the AuditorGeneral’s Report.
Refer to the Auditor-General’s Report on pages 59–62,
published under Part E: Financial Information.
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Performance Overview
Service delivery environment
The Commission continued to implement its programmes
as mandated, including support for emerging filmmakers,
promoting the province as a preferred film destination (both
locally and internationally) conducting ongoing research and
development initiatives, as well as delivering professional film
commission services.
Some of the achievements during the period under review
include:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Created 555 permanent and 8 252 temporary jobs
through film productions;
Supported eight skills development initiatives to the
benefit of 625 individuals;
Completed three commemorative day projects in the
local community;
Established two broadcast partnerships;
Facilitated 190 filming permits (target: 160); and
Supported 18 film productions, including seven feature
films, two television series, eight documentaries and one
short film.

In partnership with the Film and Publications Board, the
GFC held industry workshops in the Sedibeng district and
Mogale City, and plans to roll out these workshops to other
metros. The Commission formulated strategic partnerships
with the National Electronic Media Institute of South Africa
(NEMISA) and Big Fish School of Digital Filmmaking to address
the skills gap in the industry. As a result of this collaboration,
35 individuals will acquire their formal qualifications through
these two institutions.
The emergence of a strong creative film, television and
new media cluster is seen as key to the overall regional
competitiveness of Gauteng. In line with the vision of the
Gauteng Provincial Government to promote Gauteng as a
global city region, the DSACR aims to transform the GFC
into the GCIA. The agency will continue to create platforms
for filmmakers to showcase and sell their products.

Organisational environment
During 2012/13 the global economic situation remained
uncertain, impacting on most industries, including the audiovisual sector. Despite these circumstances, the entertainment
sector, including film, remained resilient.
According to the PwC Global Entertainment and Media
Outlook 2013–2017, entertainment and media businesses
are continuing to improve on their operational agility and
customer insight in an environment driven by digital innovation.
Consumers are increasingly connected and are calling the shots.
However, consumers are also confused by the huge content
offering they are faced with, and companies need to rapidly
accelerate innovation and agility in order to understand and
meet consumers’ changing needs.
The study predicts that film revenue will continue to grow and
will generate revenue of more than USD106 billion by 2017.
From a local perspective, a recent impact study commissioned
by the National Film and Video Foundation for the period
01 January to 31 December 2012, found that the South African
film industry contributes R3.5 billion annually to the country’s
gross domestic product (GDP), while providing employment
to more than 25 000 people. The industry also delivered an
economic multiplier of 2.89, which means that for every R1
spent in the industry, an additional R1.89 was generated in
the South African economy. In 2012, Gauteng remained the
province of choice with regards to film projects, with 33% of
the country’s projects produced in the province.
In an effort to streamline the creative sector, government is
converting the National Film and Video Foundation into the
National Film Commission. It is establishing the National Film
Fund and, as mentioned before, is finalising the establishment
of the GCIA.
Local films and actors continued to impress world-wide,
and films such as Fanie Fourie’s Lobola and Elelwani received
international awards. Many of this year’s award-winning South
African films have a strong link with the Gauteng province,
whether at the pre- or post-production stages.

GAUTENG FILM COMMISSION ANNUAL REPORT 2013

21

Performance Overview (continued)

An estimated 80% of registered producers in South Africa
are located in Gauteng, and as the country’s most affluent
province, Gauteng boasts one of Africa’s strongest screen
cultures. In addition, three of Africa’s largest broadcasters are
located in the province.
The province’s rich supply of state-of-the-art production,
processing and post-production facilities, together with excellent
logistics and service support ensure that Gauteng is well on
its way to becoming an international film location of choice.
The projected growth for the sector does not, however,
imply that it is not facing significant challenges. The distribution
industry is still struggling, while growth in the domestic market
remains slow. Digital innovation, such as social media, and a
lack of understanding of current market needs are impacting
on the local industry.
The GFC has implemented various initiatives to address these
challenges. The Commission invested in the development of a
comprehensive database of facilities, services and businesses,
and has registered more than 900 organisations, 500 of which
offer production, pre- and post-production services. Since
only about 3% of black South African’s regularly attend the
cinema, the GFC is driving a project to develop a township
film circuit to create a market for local content and to nurture
a movie-going culture in the province.
Key policy developments and legislative
changes
On 01 April 2012, it was announced that the GFC would be
relocated from the EDD to the DSACR. As the representative
of the DSACR, the MEC determined the Commission’s
mandate for the financial year, and holds the Board accountable
for managing operations in compliance with this mandate.
As required in terms of Section 52 of the Public Finance
Management Act (PFMA), Act No. 1 of 1999, the GFC
submitted a business plan to the DSACR, while the Board
submits quarterly reports to the MEC.
The GFC is currently in discussions with Provincial Treasury
regarding its listing as a public entity. The concept document
and business case for listing as the GCIA is in the process of
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being finalised. At present, the Commission is still operating
as a non-profit company (NPC) in terms of the Companies
Act, Act No. 71 of 2008, and is audited as such.
Strategic outcome-oriented goals
• To increase the number of local and international film
productions using GFC services, i.e. permit facilitation,
location promotion and logistical support.
• To conduct relevant research in order to become a hub
of industry-related information.
• To increase the number of jobs created in the film industry
through GFC support and facilitation.
• To transform the film industry by increasing enterprise
ownership and participation by previously disadvantaged
groups, i.e. black people, women and people with disabilities.
• To contribute to an increase in and access to locally
produced films through screenings, workshops, cinema
exhibitions and broadcast partnerships, with emphasis
on under-resourced areas.
• To develop and maintain effective business processes.

Performance Information by Programme
Programme 1: Industry Support and Development Unit
Overview
The Industry Support and Development Unit focuses on the development of top-class film, television and interactive media
projects through its various support programmes and the facilitation of investment in such projects.
The unit’s support programmes include funding assistance, financing facilitation and co-production negotiations, as well as
various projects in partnership with major public, private and independent distributors, broadcasters and content commissioners.
In order to develop and promote the audio-visual industry in Gauteng, the Industry Support and Development Unit has set
the following strategic objectives:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Increase the number of jobs created in the film industry through the GFC’s support and facilitation;
Transform the film industry by increasing enterprise ownership and participation by previously disadvantaged groups
(black people, women and people with disabilities);
Increase the number of local and international film productions using the services of the GFC such as permit facilitation,
location promotion and logistical support;
Contribute to increasing and promoting access to locally produced films through screenings, workshops, cinema exhibitions,
and broadcast partnerships, with emphasis on under-resourced areas;
Conduct relevant research in order to become a hub of industry-related information; and
Develop and maintain effective business processes.

From the table below, it is clear that the unit has achieved most of the targets set for the achievement of these strategic
objectives. This ensured that the film industry continued to make a significant contribution to GDP growth, not only in the
province, but also the country as a whole. In 2012, the local film industry (more than 70% of which is located in Gauteng)
contributed R3.5 billion to South Africa’s GDP.
Strategic objectives
Strategic objectives

Actual
Planned target
achievement
2012/13
2011/12
1 588
720 permanent

Increase the number of jobs
created in the film industry through
the GFC’s support and facilitation
5 456

Transform the film industry by
8
increasing enterprise ownership
843
and participation by previously
disadvantaged groups (black people,
women and people with disabilities)
Increase the number of local and
338
international film productions
using the services of the GFC
such as permit facilitation, location
promotion and logistical support

Actual
Deviation
achievement
from
Comments on deviations
2012/13
target
555
(165)
Final reports are still outstanding on some
projects, while others are still in production
3 454 temporary 8 252
4 798
Due to the seasonal nature of productions,
the increase in performance results
indicates an increase in production activity
within the province
6 skills initiatives 8
2
Due to unforeseen demand, the 48-hour
360 individuals
625
265
film project was presented in five sessions,
which led to an increase in the number of
people trained

160 shoots

190

30

This is based on applications received
from production companies. Due to
the seasonal nature of productions, the
increase in performance results indicates
an increase in production activity in the
province
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Performance Information by Programme (continued)

Actual
Planned target
achievement
2012/13
2011/12
23
18 productions
0
4 broadcast

Strategic objectives
Contribute to an increase in and
access to locally produced films
through screenings, workshops,
cinema exhibitions and broadcast
partnerships, with emphasis on
under-resourced areas

Actual
Deviation
achievement
from
Comments on deviations
2012/13
target
18
0
2
(2)
Only two projects were assessed and
approved that had broadcast support
2 audio-visual
0
(2)
There was no budget for this deliverable.
resource centres
This target is dependent on preparatory
work to be done with the DSACR
3 research
7 research
4
reports
reports

0

Conduct relevant research in order
to become a hub of industryrelated information
Develop and maintain effective
business processes

Compiled
5 research
reports
Unqualified
Audit
Report

Achieve an
Unqualified
Audit Report

Achieved an 0
Unqualified
Audit Report

Key performance indicators, planned targets and actual achievements
Performance indicator

Actual
Planned
achievement
target
2011/12
2012/13
1 588
720

Total number of permanent
jobs directly created per sector
supported (>12 months)
Total number of temporary
5 456
jobs directly created per sector
supported (<12 months)
Number of skills development 8
initiatives supported

Actual
Deviation
achievement
from target
2012/13
555
(165)

3 454

8 252

4 798

6

8

2

Number of people trained in
sector skills

843

360

625

265

Number of film projects shot
in Gauteng

338

160

180

20

Number of projects supported
by the GFC
Number of broadcast
partnerships
Audio-visual resource centres
piloted

23

18

18

0

0

4

2

(2)

0

2

0

(2)

Comments on deviations
Final reports are still outstanding on some
projects, while others are still in production
This is based on applications received from
production companies. The performance
results are dependent on these submissions.
Due to the seasonal nature of productions, this
increase in performance results indicates an
increase in production activity in the province
One of the projects supported comprised five
components due to unforeseen demand, which
led to an increase in the number of people
trained through the 48‑hour film project
This is based on applications received from
production companies. The performance
results are dependent on these submissions.
Due to the seasonal nature of productions, this
increase in performance results indicates an
increase in production activity in the province
Only two projects were assessed and
approved that had broadcast support
There was no budget for this deliverable. This
target is also dependent on preparatory work
to be done with the Gauteng Department of
Sport, Arts, Culture and Recreation

Strategy to overcome areas of underperformance
The GCF implemented various measures in order to overcome underperformance. Among others, the Commission filled
a number of significant vacancies, including the appointment of a Senior Marketing Manager, Company Secretary and Legal
Adviser. The GFC also introduced a performance management system and developed scorecards in line with the Gauteng
Growth and Development Plan.
Changes to planned targets
No changes were made to the planned targets in the period under review.
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Linking performance with budgets

Programme 1
Film content development, PR and distribution
Expansion and export of local content
Film City – feasibility study and business case
Talent management and mentorship
TOTAL

Budget
R

2012/13
Actual
expenditure
R

(Over)/under
expenditure
R

(3 053 210)
(800 000)
(1 200 000)
(5 053 210)

(2 693 389)
(625 549)
(616 390)
(3 935 328)

359 821
174 451
583 610
1 117 882

Programme 2: Research Unit
Overview
The Research Unit is responsible for achieving the GFC goal to co-ordinate data collection, analysis and dissemination within
the audio-visual industry, which is achieved through the unit’s strategic objectives, namely:
•
•

To conduct relevant market research in order to become a credible hub of industry-related information; and
To establish and maintain mutually beneficial relationships with key research entities in the industry for research purposes.

The research conducted during the review period centred on:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Business case for GCIA;
Research on the local film and TV industry;
Research on the film and TV industry in the Democratic Republic of Congo’s Katanga Province;
Research in preparation for GFC’s Strategic Planning Session;
Monthly permit updates;
Research for the Marketing Unit;
Forming strategic partnerships with key industry research entities;
Compiling the Annual Production Report; and
Compiling a narrative summary of research work in preparation for the GFC Annual Report.

Strategic objectives
Strategic objectives
To conduct relevant market
research in order to become
a credible hub for industryrelated information

To establish and maintain
mutually beneficial
relationships with key research
entities in the industry for
research purposes

Actual
achievement
2011/12

4 reports
completed

Deviation
Actual
from
achievement
target
2012/13
None
Finalise Research
Research
Agenda
Agenda
approved
4
Complete 3 research 7 reports
completed
reports (approved
by the CEO)
Signed 1
Enter into 2
(1)
partnership
Memorandum
agreements
of
Understanding
(MoU)
Planned target
2012/13

Comments on deviations
N/A

N/A

Limited funds were available due to
organisational budget cuts. As such,
research was only allocated R15 000 for
all its 2012/13 programmes. Attempts to
adjust the budget were unsuccessful
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Performance Information by Programme (continued)

Key performance indicators, planned targets and actual achievements
Performance indicator

Actual
achievement
2011/12

Research Agenda developed
and approved

4 reports
Conduct relevant market
completed
research in order to become a
credible hub for industry-related
information
Partnerships with tertiary
institutions and industry research
entities

Planned
target
2012/13
Develop
and approve
Research
Agenda
Complete
3 research
reports
(approved by
the CEO)
Enter into 2
partnership
agreements

Actual
Deviation
achievement
from target
2012/13
None
Research
Agenda
approved

Comments on deviations
N/A

7 reports
completed

4

N/A

Signed 1
MoU

(1)

Due to organisational budget cuts, there was
only R15 000 available for research. The GFC
could therefore not pursue further strategic
partnerships due to limited funds. Attempts
to adjust the budget were unsuccessful

Impact
The seven research reports compiled during the year enabled the GFC to collate crucial and relevant industry information
which is necessary for strategic interventions in the support, development and marketing of the audio-visual industry. The
collation of the above-mentioned information enables it to become a credible hub of market intelligence in the industry it
serves. The MoU signed with the Commercial Producers’ Association (CPA) gives the GFC access to comprehensive industry
research conducted by the CPA.
Strategy to overcome areas of underperformance
The GFC is entering into partnerships with key public and private entities in order to supplement the budget allocated by
the DSACR.
Changes to planned targets
No changes were made with reference to planned annual targets during 2012/13.
Linking performance with budgets

Programme 2
Research Agenda developed and approved
Seven research reports
One partnership agreement
TOTAL

26

GAUTENG FILM COMMISSION ANNUAL REPORT 2013

Budget
R
15 000
15 000

2012/13
Actual
expenditure
R
15 000
15 000

(Over)/under
expenditure
R
-

Programme 3: Marketing Unit
Overview
The aim of the Marketing Unit is to:
•
•
•

Increase the number of local and international film productions using GFC services, i.e. permit facilitation, location promotion
and logistic support;
Conduct relevant film industry research; and
Increase the number of jobs created in the film industry through GFC support and facilitation.

Strategic objectives
The Marketing Unit’s performance against its strategic objectives is based on its performance indicators. The unit’s strategic
objectives are:
•
•
•
•
•

To ensure integrated strategic communication services to co-ordinate the GFC’s communication with its internal and
external stakeholders;
To highlight the socio-economic value and contribution of Gauteng creative industries;
To increase awareness and visibility of the GFC and its services, encompassing all GFC units;
To promote Gauteng as a hub of creative industries; and
To conduct research and build market intelligence, and report thereon within the creative industries.

Strategic objectives
To ensure integrated
strategic communications
service to co-ordinate the
GFC’s communication
with its internal and
external stakeholders
To highlight the socioeconomic value and
contribution of Gauteng
creative industries

Performance
indicator
Marketing and
Communication
Strategy and
Plan developed,
approved and
implemented
Developing
outreach
programmes and
promotions
Conducting
familiarisation
tours
Compiling the
Annual Report
Hosting a Film
Indaba

Actual
achievement
2011/12
Marketing and
Communication
Plan
implemented

Planned target
2012/13

Actual
achievement
2012/13
Marketing and
Communication
Strategy
developed

Marketing and
Communication
Strategy and
Plan developed,
approved and
implemented
8 outreach
8 outreach
6 outreach
programmes and programmes and programmes and
promotions
promotions
promotions

Deviation from
target
Approval and
implementation
pending

Comments on
deviations
Strategy
developed. Will
be approved and
implemented in
the next financial
year

0

N/A

6 familiarisation
tours

None

(6)

Annual Report
developed and
distributed
None

Develop, print
and distribute
Annual Report
Host a Film
Indaba

Annual Report
developed and
distributed
Hosted in
partnership with
the DSACR as
the Gauteng
Creative
Industries Indaba

0

The project was
not implemented
due to budget
constraints

0
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Performance Information by Programme (continued)

Strategic objectives
To increase awareness and
visibility of the GFC and its
services, encompassing all
GFC units

Performance
indicator
Place
advertisements
in key media
Issue press
statements
Issue industryrelated editorial
inputs
Host industry
events
Maintain the
GFC’s electronic
media

To promote Gauteng as a
hub of creative industries

Planned target
2012/13
Place 8 adverts
in print media

8 press
statements
issued
8 editorial inputs
issued

Issue 8 press
statements

4 industry events
hosted
Managed the
GFC website

Host 6 industry
events
Manage the
GFC website,
electronic
communication
and social media

3 international
Conduct
events attended
international
export missions
(film festivals,
markets and filmrelated events)
Implement the
N/A
GFC Show Reel

Implement the
Joy of Jazz Film
Component
To conduct research and
market intelligence, and
report thereon within the
creative industries*

Actual
achievement
2011/12
5 adverts placed

N/A

N/A
Implement an
industry-related
location database

Issue 8 editorial
inputs

Attend 3
international
film-related
events/festivals

Actual
achievement
2012/13
8 adverts placed

8 press
statements
issued
8 editorial inputs
issued

Deviation from
target

Comments on
deviations

0

0

0

6 industry events 0
hosted
0
All electronic
communication,
including website
and social media,
maintained and
up to date
3 international
0
events attended

Implement the
GFC Show Reel

Project not
implemented

Not achieved

Implement the
Joy of Jazz Film
Component

Project not
implemented

Not achieved

Project
Implement and
completed
manage the
location database

The project was
not implemented
due to budget
constraints
The project was
not implemented
due to budget
constraints

0

* Note: Related research activities fall under the scope of the Research Unit and are reported on page 25 of this report.

Impact
The unit achieved most of its set targets for the period under review, which made a significant contribution towards the GFC
delivering on its mandated goal of promoting Gauteng as a film destination of choice.
Strategy to overcome areas of underperformance
The GFC is entering into partnerships with key public and private entities in order to supplement the budget allocated by
the DSACR.
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Changes to planned targets
No changes were made to the planned targets of the entity.
Linking performance with budgets

Programme 3
PR and communications
Film content export platforms
Film locations database and marketing
Relation marketing
Local film festival
‘Made in GP’ campaigns
Employment survey: economic impact
Hosting and maintenance of website
Web and ad hoc content development
Automated film permits
Annual Report
TOTAL

Budget
R’000

2012/13
Actual
expenditure
R’000

(150 000)
(890 000)
(36 300)
(202 500)
(200 000)
(250 000)
(15 000)
(80 000)
(270 000)
(15 000)
(200 000)
(2 308 800)

(86 109)
(897 395)
(102 632)
(348 713)
(13 159)
(92 460)
(331 371)
(187 532)
(2 059 371)

(Over)/under
expenditure
R’000
63 891
(7 395)
36 300
99 868
200 000
(98 713)
1 841
(12 460)
(61 371)
15 000
12 468
249 429

Programme 4: ICT Unit
Overview
The Information and Communication Technology (ICT) Unit provides the GFC with an effective information and knowledge
environment. This is achieved through enabling technologies which improve the way in which the GFC conducts its business.
In order to comply with the above, the unit needs to respond to the governance requirements as set out in the GFC’s
strategies and policies, as well as applicable laws and regulations. Through strategic planning, the unit ensures that the ICT
services and infrastructure provided are resilient and recoverable after software failures, errors, cyber-attacks or other risks.
Strategic objectives
The unit’s strategic objective is to develop and maintain an environment in which reliable information is seamlessly available
to staff and stakeholders in a sustainable and cost-effective manner, supported by sound ICT governance processes.
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Performance Information by Programme (continued)

Strategic objectives

Performance indicator

Develop and maintain
an environment in which
reliable information is
seamlessly available to
staff and stakeholders
in a sustainable and
cost-effective manner,
supported by sound ICT
governance

Review and implement
ICT Strategy

Actual
achievement
2011/12
Strategy
implemented

Develop resilient ICT
infrastructure and
implement the IT
Continuity Plan

90% of data
backed up
Data
Recovery Plan
implemented

Provide ICT support
services to the business

90% of
problems
resolved within
agreed service
levels

Planned target
2012/13
Review and
implement the
ICT Strategy
Back up 90%
of data
Test Data
Recovery Plan

Resolve 90%
of problems
within agreed
service levels

Actual
achievement
2012/13
ICT Strategy
reviewed and
implemented
90 % of data
backed up
and Phase 1
of Disaster
Recovery Plan
implemented
Resolved 90%
of problems
within agreed
service levels

Deviation
from target

Comments on
deviations

N/A

N/A

Disaster
Recovery Plan
was not fully
implemented

Due to budget
constraints, the
Disaster Recovery
Plan was
implemented in a
phased approach
N/A

N/A

Impact
The work done by the ICT Unit during the year ensured better and faster service delivery by all GFC units.
The improved communication infrastructure provided by the unit ensured better collaboration between staff and stakeholders. In
addition, the performance information collected, reported on and managed by the unit, allowed seamless access to information
by management. The unit monitored all performance information collected and reported it to stakeholders.
Changes to planned targets
There were no changes to the unit’s planned targets during the period under review.
Linking performance with budgets

30

Programme 4

Budget
R

IT development and maintenance
TOTAL

(410 000)
(410 000)
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2012/13
Actual
expenditure
R
(330 039)
(330 039)

(Over)/under
expenditure
R
79 961
79 961

The Rea Vaya Bus Rapid Transit System in the City of Johannesburg
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Summary of Financial Information (continued)

Summary of Financial Information
Revenue collection
Since the entity is wholly funded by the DSACR, it does not collect revenue.
Programme expenditure

Revenue
Government grant for the year
Interest income
Other income
Revenue per Statement of Financial
Performance
Total

2013
Actual
R

2013
Budget
R

2013
Variance
R

2012
Actual
R

2012
Budget
R

2012
Variance
R

23 453 000
281 377
72 536

23 453 000
-

(281 377)
(72 536)

18,747,000
431,255
11,050

19,357,200
-

610,200
(431,255)
(11,050)

23 806 913
23 806 913

23 453 000
23 453 000

(353 913)
(353 913)

19,189,305
19,189,305

19,357,200
19,357,200

169,925
169,925

Expenditure
Management of GFC
(18,533,246) (15,075,990)
Administrative services
(168,557)
(155,600)
Auxiliary services
(870,335)
(520,000)
Building and office equipment
(1,392,759)
(479,883)
Development and maintenance of IT
(324,091)
(410,000)
Human resources
(415,296)
(380,000)
Office security and safety
(19,793)
(20,000)
Printing and stationery
(70,629)
(89,000)
Professional fees
(724,073)
(668,999)
Employee cost
(14,044,554) (12,352,508)
Finance cost
(39,991)
Irrecoverable receivables
(463,169)
Legal and Governance
(226 604)
(180 000)
Audit Committee fees
(22 000)
(44 000)
Bid Committee
(4 000)
Directors’ remuneration
(140 000)
(80 000)
Legal fees
(9 000)
Refreshments and meetings
(20 614)
(18 000)
Remuneration Committee fees
(20 000)
(8 000)
Training and development
(19 990)
(21 000)
Industry Support and Development (3 935 328) (5 053 210)
Film content development,
promotion and distribution
(2 693 389) (3 053 210)
Expansion and export of local
content
(625 549)
(800 000)
Film City – Feasibility study and
business case
Talent management and mentorship
(616 390) (1 200 000)
Advocacy and Strategy
(317 820)
(550 000)
CEO corporate entertainment
(11 390)
(50 000)
Phase II: Sector Strategy
GCIA business case
(306 430)
(500 000)
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(3,457,256) (15,793,281) (13,742,326)
(12,956)
(159,441)
(139,520)
(350,335)
(610,857)
(468,518)
(912,876) (1,871,622)
(303,804)
85,909
(498,252)
(480,000)
(35,296)
(339,442)
(285,973)
207
(22,134)
(30,000)
18,371
(232,138)
(220,164)
(55,074)
(707,611)
(661,620)
(1,692,046) (11,307,904) (11,152,727)
(39,991)
(43,879)
(463,169)
(46 604)
(138,980)
(154,935)
22 000
(33,000)
(44,000)
(4 000)
(60 000)
(72,000)
(80,000)
9 000
(3,130)
(9,000)
(2 614)
(14,850)
(13,935)
(12 000)
(16,000)
(8,000)
1 010
1 117 882
(3,950,787) (3,871,456)

(2,050,955)
(19,921)
(142,339)
(1,567,818)
(18,253)
(53,469)
7,866
(11,974)
(45,991)
(155,177)
(43,879)
15,955
11,000
8,000
5,870
(915)
(8,000)
(79,331)

359 821

(2,574,948)

(2,605,000)

30,052

174 451

(562,268)

(466,456)

(95,812)

583 610
232 180
38 610
193 570

(813,571)
(940,855)
(92,845)
(920,855)
-

(800,000)
(940,855)
(20,000)
(920,855)
-

(13,571)
(72,845)
(72,845)
-

2013
Actual
R

2013
Budget
R

2013
Variance
R

2012
Actual
R

2012
Budget
R

2012
Variance
R

Marketing
(2,059,371) (2,308,800)
PR and communications
(86,109)
(150,000)
Film content export platforms
(897,395)
(890,000)
Film locations database and
marketing
(36,300)
Relation marketing
(102,632)
(202,500)
Local Film Festival
(200,000)
‘Made in GP’ campaigns
(348,713)
(250,000)
Employment survey: economic
impact
(13,159)
(15,000)
Hosting and maintenance of website
(92,460)
(80,000)
Web and ad hoc content
development
(331,371)
(270,000)
Film Indaba
Automated film permits
(15,000)
Annual Report
(187,532)
(200,000)
Other cost
(232,441)
Depreciation
(217,679)
Loss on assets written off
(14,762)
Total expenditure as per Statement
of Financial Performance
(25,304,810) (23,168,000)
Adjustment for items not included in
Statement of Financial Performance
Capital expenditure
(956,375)
(285,000)
Total expenditure including capital
expenditure
(26,260,895) (23,168,000)

249,429
63,891
(7,395)

(1,274,083)
(98,096)
(277,709)

(1,448,483)
(122,000)
(330,000)

174,400
23,904
52,291

36,300
99,868
200,000
(98,713)

(134,550)
(38,500)
(503,523)

(120,000)
(50,000)
(60,000)
(548,000)

(14,550)
11,500
(60,000)
44,477

1,841
(12,460)

(30,000)
(101,250)

(68,000)
(100,000)

38,000
(1,250)

(61,371)
15,000
12,468
(232,441)
(217,679)
(14,762)

(90,455)
-

(50,000)
(483)

(40,455)
(483)

(236,354)
(236,354)
-

-

(2,136,810) (22,407,185) (20,158,055)
(671,375)

(168,760)

(236,354)
(236,354)
(2,249,130)

(120,000)

(48,760)

(2,807,985) (22,575,945) (20,278,055)

(2,297,890)

Capital investment, maintenance and asset management plan
The GFC has an approved Asset Management Policy in place. During the year under review, the GFC relocated to 56 Main
Street. This move resulted in an increase in capital expenditure as a result of renovations, information technology, PR and
communication and human resource activities. A project team was appointed to oversee the relocation.
The GFC did not complete any infrastructure projects during the current financial year.
Summary of payments by sub-programme
The GFC does not have any sub-programmes.
Strategy to overcome areas of underperformance
The GFC has a Strategic Plan in place for the next three years, which is centred on achieving the Commission’s mandated
goals. In addition, the Commission is entering strategic partnerships with key public and private entities in order to supplement
the budget allocated by the DSACR.
Changes to planned targets
No changes were made to planned targets during the period under review.
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Bassline in Newtown, Johannesburg
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Part C:
Governance
Introduction
The Board has reaffirmed the GFC’s commitment to sound governance
practices and, in particular, to the Companies Act, Act No. 71 of
2008, as well as the principles underlying the King III Report on
Corporate Governance (King III) and the Protocol on Corporate
Governance in the Public Sector as adopted by cabinet in 2002. In
this regard, the Board is constantly reviewing its corporate governance
structures and practices to align them with national best practice.
The GFC is committed to conducting its affairs with integrity and
holds itself accountable to its stakeholders and clients.

Executive Authority
Since its inception in 2002, the Gauteng Film Commission has been
accountable to the Economic Development Department (EDD).
On 01 April 2012 an announcement was made that the GFC would
be relocated to the Gauteng Department of Sport, Art, Culture
and Recreation. The MEC of the above Department is therefore
the executive authority.
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The Board
Introduction
The Board reports to the Gauteng Department of Sport, Arts, Culture and Recreation by way of quarterly and annual reports,
and holds regular meetings with the MEC, Heads of Department and CEO.
The Board is responsible for:
•
•
•
•

Retaining full and effective control over the GFC;
Approving the Corporate Strategy, business plans and budgets, and monitoring Management closely in implementing
these;
Ensuring that the GFC complies with all relevant laws, regulations and codes of best practice; and
Ensuring that effective risk management processes are in place.

The Directors are entitled to seek independent professional advice concerning the affairs of the GFC and have access to any
information they may require in discharging their duties.
The CEO is charged with the day-to-day management of the GFC’s operations and assists the Board in providing strategic
and policy direction to the entity. During the period under review, Mzwandile Masina, who had been the acting CEO of the
Commission, was appointed as CEO.
Board Charter
The GFC Board Charter has been adopted and adhered to.
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Mr L Kepe
Chairperson

Mr M Masina
CEO

Mr T Tselane
Non-executive

Ms B Mhaga
Non-executive

Ms M Molotsi
Non-executive

Mr K Khoza
Non-executive

Ms S Bulane-Hopa
Non-executive

Notes: The photos of Mr M Vundla and Mr P Diamond were not available at time of printing.
Mr N Kekana is not pictured as per note on page 38.
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The Board (continued)

Composition of the Board

Name

Designation

Date
appointed

Mr L Kepe

Chairperson

01 Sep 2011 -

Ms B Mhaga

Non-executive 01 June 2012

Mr K Khoza

Non-executive 06 Mar 2012

Mr T Tselane

Non-executive 20 Jan 2012

Ms M Molotsi

Non-executive 01 June 2012

Ms S Bulane-Hopa Non-executive 01 Mar 2008
Mr M Vundla
Mr N

Kekana*

Mr P Diamond

Mr M Masina

*
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Non-executive 01 Sep 2011

Date
resigned

Qualifications

• Bachelor of Theology
• Business Management
• Bachelor of Philosophy
• Bachelor of Technology
• Diploma in Town and
Regional Planning
• Master of Public
Administration
• Post-graduate Diploma
in Administrative
Studies
• Master of Education
• Bachelor of Arts
• Diploma in Education
• Certificate in Policy and
Project Planning
• Certificate in
Principles of Business
Management
• Certificate in Facilitation
in Organisational
Development
• Post-graduate Diploma
in Management in
Public Policy
• Bachelor of Education
• MBA
• Master of Film History
and Documentary
30 Oct 2012 • Bachelor of Politics
• Master of Education
• Post-graduate Diploma
in Telecommunications
and Information Policy
• Diploma in Computer
Programming

Area of
expertise

Board directorships

Film

None

Business
management

None

No. of
Other
meetings
committees attended
(out of 6)
Remuneration 3
Committee
Bid
3
Committee

Public
None
administration

Audit
Committee

Film, tourism None
and business
management
Public
• Delloitte & Touche
administration • Gauteng Manufacturing Advice
Centre
• Gauteng Tourism Authority

Remuneration 4
Committee

Film

None

Politics and
None
film
Non-executive 04 Jun 2005
• Mowana Investments (Pty) Ltd
Film
Communication • Msima Communications (Pty) Ltd
• Krew Investments (Pty) Ltd
• Skelton 8: Plummer Investment
Holdings (Pty) Ltd
• Brother Business Machines (Pty) Ltd
• Business Connexion Group Ltd
• Experian South Africa (Pty) Ltd
• Globecast South Africa (Pty) Ltd
Non-executive 01 Sep 2011 31 May 2012
Private equity • GRG Zimbabwe (PVT) Ltd
• Shine Fashion Management (Pty) Ltd
• Heads Model Agency (Pty) Ltd
• G3 Model Agency (Pty) Ltd
• AST 257 (Pty) Ltd trading as Shine
Agencies
Executive
01 Apr 2012 • Public and Development Public sector None
Management Certificate management
• Master of
Entrepreneurship

4

3

5
1
-

-

6

Mr N Kekana missed more than three Board meetings during the year under review, and thus far has not tendered his resignation as required by the Board charter.
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Board committees
To assist it in discharging its responsibilities, the Board has established the following committees: Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee, Specification and Evaluation Committee, Bid Adjudication Committee, and the Risk Management Committee,
as reflected in the Board Charter.
Audit Committee
See Internal Audit and Audit Committee on page 42.
Remuneration Committee
The committee is accountable for monitoring and overseeing the remuneration of all GFC employees; giving due regard to
the competitiveness within the market, as well as the financial wellbeing of the organisation.
Bid Adjudication Committee
The committee is responsible for monitoring and overseeing the implementation of the Procurement Policy, Procedures and
Code of Conduct, and monitoring adherence thereto.
Specification and Evaluation Committee
This committee is involved in all open tenders of the GFC, and makes recommendation to the Bid Committee.
Risk Management Committee
The committee consists of GFC Senior Managers and is responsible for managing both the financial and non-financial risks
of the Commission.
Management Committee
The committee comprises GFC Executive Managers and deals with issues pertaining to the day-to-day management of the
business. It is also responsible for the formulation and implementation of the Commission’s strategy, once approved by the Board.
The composition and meetings of those committees that met during the reporting period are set out in the table below:
Committee
Audit Committee

No. of meetings held No. of members
4
4

Bid Committee

1

2

Remuneration Committee

1

4

Name of members
Mr J Van der Walt CA (SA): Chairperson
Mr K Khoza: Deputy Chairperson
Ms E Makau
Mr P Mothudi CA (SA)
Ms B Mhaga
Mr E Maluleke PA (SA)
Mr F Manana CA (SA)
Mr T Tselane
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The Board (continued)

Remuneration of Board members
Name
Mr L Kepe
Ms B Mhaga
Mr K Khoza
Mr T Tselane
Ms M Molotsi
Ms S Bulane-Hopa
Mr M Vundla
Mr N Kekana
Mr P Diamond
Mr M Masina

Remuneration
R4 000 per meeting
R4 000 per meeting
R4 000 per meeting
R4 000 per meeting
R4 000 per meeting
R4 000 per meeting
R4 000 per meeting
R4 000 per meeting
R4 000 per meeting
N/A

Other allowance
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

Other reimbursements
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

Total
R28 000
R20 000
R16 000
R36 000
R12 000
R20 000
R8 000
N/A

Risk Management
In line with the Companies Act, the Board is responsible for the management of the risks pertaining to the business of the
GFC. The Board has delegated this authority to the CEO.
While the Line Manager of each unit within the GFC is primarily responsible for identifying and managing risks inherent to the
operations of his/her unit, the Audit Committee develops and reviews risk management strategies, policies and procedures
to ensure that they are appropriate to the GFC.
The Management Committee reports administratively to the CEO and submits quarterly reports to the Audit Committee,
providing assurance on the management of significant risks or exposure. Internal Audit (outsourced to Nexia SAB&T)
independently audits the adequacy and effectiveness of the GFC’s risk, control and governance processes.
Strategic risk
Strategic risk relates to the failure of the GFC to deliver on its mandate.
Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is managed through careful selection of financial instruments and cash flow forecasting.
Compliance risk
Compliance risk relates to a negative impact originating from non-compliance with all applicable legislation and regulations.
The Risk Management Committee assists the Board in complying with all applicable statutory and regulatory requirements
by keeping it informed about any changes or developments in these spheres.

40

GAUTENG FILM COMMISSION ANNUAL REPORT 2013

Operational risk
Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems.
This risk category is managed through a system of internal controls, which is based on approved policies and procedures for
initiation, verification and reconciliation of transactions, and adequate segregation of incompatible duties. The operational risk
category includes the following risk areas:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Fraud;
Financial management;
Legal risk;
Human resource risk;
Information risk; and
Business continuity.

The Audit Committee and Board have approved a number of finance policies which include an Anti-fraud and Corruption
Policy and avoidance of wasteful and fruitless expenditure. No incidents of fraud or irregular activities were reported during
the year under review.
Reputation risk
Reputation risk is the risk of damage to the GFC’s image which may impair its ability to retain and generate more business.
The GFC manages its reputational risk through its ongoing evaluation and management of the significant risk types. The
Communication Manager manages the corporate communication portfolio.

Internal Control
The Audit Committee assists the Board in discharging its duty to ensure that the GFC maintains adequate accounting records,
internal controls and systems designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the integrity and reliability of financial
information and to safeguard its assets.
The efficiency of these internal control systems is monitored through management reviews, formalised reporting and internal
audits. The internal audit function, under the direction of the Audit Committee, is outsourced to an independent service
provider and operates in terms of the Internal Audit Charter, which was reviewed and approved by the Audit Committee
and endorsed by the Board during the year under review.
Internal Audit reports functionally to the Audit Committee and administratively to the CEO, and its staff have full and
unrestricted access to the Chairperson of the Audit Committee.
The Audit Committee conducts its own review of the effectiveness of the internal audit function.
All operations, business activities and support functions are subject to internal review. The Internal Audit Plan is based on
key risk areas identified through risk assessment and the audits are planned and executed to provide Management with
independent assurance regarding the adequacy and effectiveness of internal control systems.
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Internal Audit and Audit Committee
At present, Nexia SAB&T provides internal audit services to the GFC in accordance with the Internal Audit Charter as agreed
to by the Board. In terms of this charter, the Internal Auditors must prepare:
•
•

A three-year Strategic Internal Audit Plan based on the risk assessment process and taking into account the Commission’s
current operations, business plans and Risk Management Strategy; and
An annual Internal Audit Plan for the first year of the above-mentioned Strategic Plan.

During the reporting period, the Internal Auditors prepared both the above-mentioned plans, which were approved by the Board.
The aim of the Strategic Internal Audit Plan is to articulate the expectations of all stakeholders involved and the manner in
which these expectations will be addressed. The plan will be updated and reviewed on a regular basis to maintain its relevance.
The Internal Auditors performed the following audits during the period under review:
•
•
•

Performance;
Finance; and
Information technology.

An external audit is currently under way, focusing on financial and performance information, as well as compliance with
relevant regulations.
The Audit Committee oversees financial reporting, internal control, risk management, funding plans and strategies, compliance,
corporate governance and policies. It is supported by the Management Committee in fulfilling its duties with regard to financial
risk management. The committee’s responsibilities pertaining to risk management include, but are not limited to:
•
•
•

Reviewing the GFC’s Risk Management Policy and Strategy;
Assisting the Board in evaluating the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management process; and
Reviewing the GFC’s significant risk exposure and making recommendations to the Board on appropriate mitigation
strategies.

The table below discloses relevant information on the Audit Committee members:
Name

Qualifications

Internal/external

Mr J Van der Walt
Mr K Khoza
Ms E Makau

CA (SA)

External
External
External

If internal,
position in GFC
N/A
N/A
N/A

External

N/A

Mr P Mothudi
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Date appointed

Date resigned

24 May 2007
01 Nov 2012
24 May 2007

-

No. of meetings
attended
2
1
1

24 Nov 2009

-

4

Compliance with Laws and Regulations
The GFC submitted its Business Plan to the DSACR, as required in terms of Section 52 of the PFMA, and submitted quarterly
reports regarding finance, performance, and conformance to applicable laws, regulations and other government prescripts.

Fraud and Corruption
The GFC is committed to protecting its revenue, expenditure, assets and reputation from any attempts by any person to
gain financial or other benefits in an unlawful, dishonest or unethical manner. All governing structures within the Commission
are focused on fraud prevention, and the GFC continues to embrace any contribution employees and members of the
community make in this regard.
Fraud-related risks are reviewed on a regular basis and the necessary internal controls and audit measures are in place to
identify and manage these risks. Any direct or indirect losses incurred due to fraud are monitored through effective information
and communication and the Commission reacts swiftly when a crime is uncovered.
The Fraud Prevention Plan is based on four key pillars, namely:
1.
2.
3.
4.

Creating an anti-fraud environment;
Understanding and managing the risks;
Being proactive in defence; and
Reacting swiftly to suspected or known crimes.

The CEO and Chairman of the Board are responsible for the implementation and maintenance of the Fraud Prevention Plan,
while the Audit Committee has an oversight role. The plan has been fully implemented and puts the necessary mechanisms
in place to report any cases of fraud or corruption.
No cases of fraud have been reported to date.

Minimising Conflict of Interest
All Board members complete a General Declaration of Interest in order to minimise conflict interest. In the event of a conflict,
the conflicting party would be recused.
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Code of Conduct
The GFC is managed ethically and in line with its Code of Conduct, which is based on the fundamental principles of fairness,
transparency, integrity, reliability, responsibility and honesty.
The code commits GFC Management and staff to high standards of conduct in their dealings with clients and stakeholders.
No incidence of unethical conduct that required further investigation or action was reported during the year under review.

Health, Safety and Environmental Issues
The GFC prides itself in maintaining an incident-free work environment. The Commission is currently reviewing its Occupational
Health and Safety (OHS) Plan to include specific areas of concern and mitigate any incidents which could pose a danger
or which could compromise its safety standards. The OHS Plan will include a hazard analysis, safety assessments and a
preventative roadmap.
The aim is to foster a safe, healthy work environment; to protect the Commission’s employees, customers and any other
visitors to its facilities; and to prevent financial losses incurred due to negligence or litigation.

Company Secretary
The Company Secretary is responsible for ensuring compliance with the Commission’s Memorandum and Articles of Association
and effecting any changes to meet the needs of the GFC. She may also assume the responsibilities of public officer of the
Commission under the Income Tax Act, Act No. 28 of 1997, and other taxation legislation.
The Company Secretary must, in accordance with the Companies Act, Act No. 71 of 2008, certify that the Commission has
lodged all returns required of a public company and that all these returns are true, correct and up to date. Other responsibilities
include ensuring that all letterheads, notices and official stationery and publications of the GFC display the correct entity name,
registration number, registered office and names of the Directors and Company Secretary.

Social Responsibility
No social responsibility projects were undertaken during the year.
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Certificate of the Company Secretary
In my capacity as Company Secretary, I hereby confirm that, in terms of the Companies Act, the GFC has lodged all such
returns as required of a company in terms of the Act, and that all such returns are, to the best of my knowledge and belief,
true, correct and up to date.

A Mokoena
Company Secretary
31 May 2013

Audit Committee Report
Audit Committee responsibility
The Audit Committee reports that it has discharged all its responsibilities as set out in terms of Section 94 (7) of the Companies
Act, as well as in its adopted Terms of Reference.
In conducting its duties, the Audit Committee reviewed:
• The effectiveness of the internal control systems;
• The effectiveness of activities of the internal audit function, including the Strategic Internal Audit Plan, co-ordination with
the external auditors and the response of Management to specific recommendations;
• The risk areas of the GFC to be covered in the scope of internal and external audits;
• The adequacy, reliability and accuracy of financial information provided to Management and other users of such information;
• Any accounting and auditing concerns identified as a result of internal and external audits; and
• Compliance with legal and regulatory provisions.
Internal controls
The GFC’s Management continues to strive towards sustainable improvement in its internal controls.
Nothing has come to the attention of the Audit Committee to indicate that a material breakdown in the functioning of the
internal controls, procedures and systems has occurred during the year under review.
In the opinion of the Audit Committee, the internal controls and procedures of the GFC are appropriate in all material
respects to:
•
•
•

Meet the business objectives of the GFC;
Ensure the GFC’s assets are adequately safeguarded; and
Ensure that transactions undertaken are recorded in the GFC’s records.
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Audit Committee Report (continued)

Evaluation of Financial Statements
The committee has evaluated the Annual Financial Statements
of the GFC for the year ended 31 March 2013 and, based
on the information provided, considers that the statements
comply, in all material respects, with the requirements of
the Companies Act.
The Audit Committee concurs and accepts the AuditorGeneral’s conclusions on the Annual Financial Statements
and is of the opinion that these statements be accepted
and read together with the report of the Auditor-General.

J Van der Walt CA (SA)
Chairperson of the Audit Committee
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Dancers, Newtown
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Sculpture at the Johannesburg Art Gallery

48

GAUTENG FILM COMMISSION ANNUAL REPORT 2013

Part D:
Human
Resource
Management
Introduction
The strategic objective of the Human Resources Unit is to ensure
that the GFC is adequately staffed, trained and capacitated in an
environment conducive to harmonious working relations.
The unit, however, faces a number of challenges in achieving this
objective, namely:
•
•
•

Inability to meet service standards due to lack of capacity;
Low morale among employees; and
Lack of leadership.

In order to address these challenges, the unit reviewed all existing
policies and implemented the necessary changes. The lack of capacity
within the Commission was addressed by filling critical vacancies,
including those of Senior Marketing Manager, HR and Office Manager,
Company Secretary and Legal Advisor.
The unit continued to deliver according to its performance indicators
as set out in the approved Human Resources Plan. The GFC complies
with all labour legislation and, during the period under review, all
employee relations matters were dealt with in a timeous manner.
Furthermore, a performance management system was developed
and implemented during the period under review.
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Introduction (continued)

The GFC’s Wellness Plan seeks to address issues regarding the ability of employees to perform their duties to their full
potential. Several Wellness Programmes are in place to assist employees in dealing with various work- and health-related
challenges. These programmes include:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Stress management;
Substance abuse;
Chronic disease management;
Physical health;
Balance programmes (retirements plans, work-family life transition);
Seamless access to Employee Assistance Programmes (EAP);
Environmental programmes (equity in the workplace, health and safety); and
Education subsidy.

In the next financial year, the Commission will communicate its Wellness Plan to all staff members and will have it prominently
displayed in common areas. The plan will be reviewed on an annual basis.

Human Resource Oversight Statistics
Personnel cost by programme

Programme
CEO’s Office
Finance
Human Resources
Information Technology
Industry Support and Distribution
Legal
Marketing
TOTAL

50

GAUTENG FILM COMMISSION ANNUAL REPORT 2013

Total
expenditure
for the entity
R’000
317
18 009
415
1 299
3 935
226
2 059
26 260

Personnel
expenditure
R’000

Personnel
expenditure
as a %
of total
expenditure

No. of
employees

Average
personnel
cost per
employee
R’000

3 339
1 997
1 440
1 162
2 562
1 063
2 481
14 044

9.5%
11.1%
28.8%
89.4%
65.1%
470.4%
120.5%
53.6%

4
3
5
2
5
2
3
24

834
666
288
581
512
531
827
585

Personnel cost by salary band
% of personnel
Personnel expenditure to
expenditure total personnel
R’000
cost

Salary band
Top Management
Senior Management
Qualified professionals
Skilled
Semi-skilled
Unskilled
TOTAL

1 424
4 800
4 267
3 120
220
213
14 044

10.14%
34.18%
30.38%
22.22%
1.56%
1.52%
100%

No. of
employees

Average
personnel
cost per
employee
R’000

1
5
7
8
1
2
24

1 424
960
609
390
220
107
585

Performance rewards
Only Top Management is rewarded based on performance. The associated expenditure is set out in note 14 of the Annual
Financial Statements.
Training costs

Programme
CEO’s Office
Finance
Human Resource
Information Technology
Industry Support and Development
Legal
Marketing
TOTAL

Personnel
expenditure
R’000

Training
expenditure
R’000

Training
expenditure as
% of personnel
cost

3 339
1 997
1 440
1 162
2 562
1 063
2 481
14 044

6
29
34
17
49
12
17
164

0.04%
0.21%
0.24%
0.12%
0.35%
0.09%
0.12%
1.17%

No. of
employees
trained

Average
training
cost per
employee
R’000

2
2
2
2
2
2
2
14

3
14.5
17
8.5
24.5
6
8.5
11
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Human Resource Oversight Statistics (continued)

Employment and vacancies

Salary band
Top Management
Senior Management
Qualified professionals
Skilled
Semi-skilled
Unskilled
TOTAL

2011/12

2012/13

2012/13

2012/13

No. of
employees

Approved
posts

No. of
employees

Vacancies

% of
vacancies

1
2
7
6
1
1
18

1
4
8
7
2
2
24

1
5
7
8
1
2
24

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

Terminations

Employment
at end of the
period

0
0
0
1
0
0
1

1
5
7
8
1
2
24

Number

% of total
no. of staff
leaving

Employment changes
Salary band
Top Management
Senior Management
Qualified professionals
Skilled
Semi-skilled
Unskilled
TOTAL

Employment
at beginning
of period Appointments
0
3
6
8
1
0
18

1
2
1
1
0
2
7

Reasons for staff leaving
Reason
Death
Resignation
Dismissal
Retirement
Ill health
Expiry of contract
Other
TOTAL
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0
2
0
0
0
1
0
3

66.7

33.3
100

Labour relations: misconduct and disciplinary action
No disciplinary action was taken during the period under review.
Equity target and employment equity status

Salary band
Top Management
Senior Management
Qualified professionals
Skilled
Semi-skilled
Unskilled
TOTAL

Salary band
Top Management
Senior Management
Qualified professionals
Skilled
Semi-skilled
Unskilled
TOTAL

Male
African
Coloured
Indian
White
Current Target* Current Target* Current Target* Current Target*
1
3
4
2
1
0
11

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

Female
African
Coloured
Indian
White
Current Target* Current Target* Current Target* Current Target*
0
1
4
5
1
1
12

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

* No targets for Employment Equity have been set as the GFC is not recognised as a designated employer due to only employing 24 staff members.

No disabled staff are employed by the GFC at present.
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African craft, Newtown Cultural Precinct
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The Annual Financial Statements were prepared by:
Lazarus Makube, Finance and Payroll Manager
These Annual Financial Statements have been audited in compliance
with the applicable requirements of the Companies Act of South
Africa No. 71 of 2008.
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Statement of Responsibility
for the year ended 31 March 2013
The Companies Act, Act No. 71 of 2008, requires the Directors to ensure that the GFC keeps full and proper records of its
financial affairs. The Annual Financial Statements should fairly present the state of the affairs of the GFC, its financial results,
and its financial position at the end of the year under review. The Annual Financial Statements are therefore the responsibility
of the Directors.
The Annual Financial Statements of the GFC have been prepared in terms of the International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS), including any interpretations of such statements. The Annual Financial Statements have been prepared in the manner
required by the Companies Act.
These Annual Financial Statements are based on appropriate accounting policies, supported by reasonable and prudent
judgements and estimates; and are prepared on the going concern basis. The Directors have every reason to believe that the
GFC will be a going concern in the year ahead.
To discharge the above responsibilities, the Board of Directors set standards to ensure that sound systems of internal control
are implemented by management.
The controls are designed to provide cost-effective assurance that assets are safeguarded, and that liabilities and working
capital are efficiently managed. Policies, procedures, structures and approval frameworks provide direction, accountability
and division of responsibilities.
The controls throughout GFC focus on those critical risk areas identified by operational risk management and confirmed by
executive management. Management, Audit Committee and Internal Audit closely monitor the controls and ensure action
is taken to correct deficiencies as they are identified.
The Directors are of the opinion, based on the information and explanations given by Management, the Audit Committee
and Internal Audit, and based on the results of their audit, that the material internal accounting controls are adequate to
ensure that the financial records may be relied upon for preparing the Annual Financial Statements, and that accountability
for assets and liabilities is maintained.
Nothing has come to the attention of the Directors to indicate that any material breakdown in the functioning of these
controls, procedures and systems has occurred during the year under review.
In the opinion of the Directors, based on the information available to date, the Annual Financial Statements (including cash
flow information) fairly present the financial position of the GFC as at 31 March 2013 and the results of its operations for
the year then ended.
The Annual Financial Statements of the GFC for the year ended 31 March 2013, as set out on pages 65 to 88 were reviewed
by the Audit Committee on the 27 May 2013 and subsequently approved by the Board of Directors and signed on its behalf
by the Chairperson of the Board and the CEO.

L Kepe
Chairperson of the Board
31 May 2013
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M Masina
Chief Executive Officer

Report of the Chief Executive Officer
General financial review
Despite the trying economic environment in which it had to operate, the GFC continued to perform well in the period under
review. The Commission’s financial results for the 2012/13 financial year can be summarised as follows:
2013
R
Total revenue
Net loss for the year
Total assets
Accumulated surplus

23 453 000
(1 497 898)
6 012 718
4 205 546

2012
R
20 110 160
(2 297 025)
7 773 623
5 703 443

Spending trends
Over the years, the Commission’s expenditure has increased steadily, and total expenditure for the year was R25.3 million
(2011/12: R22.4 million). This increase can be ascribed to a bigger budget allocation for industry support, development and
marketing. In order to try and address the constraints put on the budget, it was increased from R18.7 million in 2011/12 to
R23.4 million in the period under review. This increase is, however, insufficient, and the Commission is exploring alternative
financial resources.
Challenges
In the previous reporting period the MEC for the EDD identified film as a key economic driver in the province. However, job
creation and the support of upcoming young black filmmakers in the audio-visual industry remain concerns. The increased
budget allocated to the GFC in the period under review helped to launch various development-focussed programmes within
the industry.
Some critical positions within the Commission were filled during the period under review to increase capacity. As at 31 March
2013, there are no vacancies or capacity constraints within the Commission.
Discontinued activities and proposed future activities
No activities of the GFC were discontinued in the financial year under review, and the Commission’s mandate was broadened
to include the whole audio-visual industry.
The DSACR is in the process of transforming the GFC into the Gauteng Creative Industries Agency. During the period under
review, the concept paper and business case were developed for the agency, and the legislative process will commence in
the next financial year. We believe that this synergistic agency will contribute even more to the sustainability and growth of
the audio-visual industry in Gauteng, as well as to the socio-economic development of the province.
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Report of the Chief Executive Officer (continued)

Requests for rollover of funds
The GFC did not make any requests relating to the rollover of funds in 2012/13.
Supply chain management
The GFC has a Supply Chain Management Policy in place, which was approved by the Board and is in line with the PFMA.
This policy guides the procurement of all goods and services by the Commission. During the period under review, the GFC
did not receive any unsolicited bid proposals.
Audit report matters in the previous year
During the 2011/12 financial year, three findings were raised by the Auditor-General, namely the late submission of the GFC
business plan to the Executive Authority for approval, the overstatement of the leave accrual balance and the overstatement
of the Valued-Added Tax (VAT) balance. In response, the GFC has implemented an action plan which includes both internal
and external audit findings to ensure that all findings are resolved.
Events after the reporting date
No significant events occurred between 31 March 2013 and the date of authorisation.
Outlook
The current funding model of the GFC does not ensure its economic viability. For this reason, a team, dedicated to the
sourcing of additional financing, was appointed within my office to form strategic partnerships with both private and public
institutions. Some of the institutions approached to date include the National Lottery and the Department of Trade and
Industry, and we are confident that agreements will be signed in the next financial year.

M Masina
Chief Executive Officer
31 May 2013
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Report of the Auditor-General
REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL TO THE GAUTENG PROVINCIAL LEGISLATURE ON THE GAUTENG FILM
COMMISSION NPC
REPORT ON THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Introduction
1. I have audited the Financial Statements of the Gauteng Film Commission set out on pages 65 to 88 which comprise
the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2013, the Statement of financial Performance, Statement of Changes
in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and the notes, comprising a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.
Board of Directors’ responsibility for the financial statements
2. The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these Financial Statements in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), and requirements of the Companies Act of South Africa No. 71
of 2008 (Companies Act), and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of Annual Financial Statements that are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor-General’s responsibility
3. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these Annual Financial Statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the Annual Financial Statements
are free from material misstatement.
4. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the Financial
Statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the Financial Statements in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the Financial Statements.
5. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit opinion.
Opinion
6. In my opinion, the Annual Financial Statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Gauteng
Film Commission as at 31 March 2013, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with IFRS, and the requirements of the Companies Act.
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Report of the Auditor-General (continued)

Emphasis of matter
7. I draw attention to the matter below. My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
Going concern
8. I draw attention to note 21 in the Financial Statements which indicates that there is material uncertainty regarding the
going concern as a result of the current process which is underway of listing a new entity as Gauteng Creative Industry
Agency. The finalisation of this process will have an impact on the current status of the organisation as Gauteng Film
Commission may be absorbed into the new entity created.
Change in accounting framework
9. I draw attention to note 24 in the Financial Statements which indicates the first time adoption of International Financial
Reporting Standards. In the prior year the company applied South African Statements of Generally Recognised Accounting
Practice (GRAP). This was revised in the current financial year since the Gauteng Film Commission is not a public entity.
Additional matter
10. I draw attention to the matter below. My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
Other reports required by the Companies Act
11. As part of our audit of the Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2013, we have read the Directors’
Report and Audit Committee’s Report for the purpose of identifying whether there are material inconsistencies between
these reports and the audited Annual Financial Statements. These reports are the responsibility of the respective preparers.
Based on reading these reports we have not identified material inconsistencies between these reports and the audited
Annual Financial Statements. However, we have not audited these reports and accordingly do not express an opinion
on these reports.
REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS
12. In accordance with the PAA and the General Notice issued in terms thereof, I report the following findings relevant to
performance against predetermined objectives, compliance with laws and regulations and internal control, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion.
Predetermined objectives
13. I performed procedures to obtain evidence about the usefulness and reliability of the information in the Annual Performance
Information Report as set out on pages 21 to 30 of the Annual Report.
14. The reported performance against predetermined objectives was evaluated against the overall criteria of usefulness and reliability.
The usefulness of information in the Annual Performance Report relates to whether it is presented in accordance with the National
Treasury’s annual reporting principles and whether the reported performance is consistent with the planned objectives. The usefulness
of information further relates to whether indicators and targets are measurable (i.e. well defined, verifiable, specific, measurable
and time bound) and relevant as required by the National Treasury Framework for Managing Programme Performance Information.
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The reliability of the information in respect of the selected objectives is assessed to determine whether it adequately
reflects the facts (i.e. whether it is valid, accurate and complete).
15. There were no material findings on the Annual Performance Information Report concerning the usefulness and reliability
of the information.
Additional matter
16. Although no material findings concerning the usefulness and reliability of the performance information were identified in
the Annual Performance Information Report, I draw attention to the following matter below.
Achievement of planned targets
17. Three of the nine targets were not achieved during the year under review. This represents 33% of total planned targets
not achieved.
Material adjustments to the annual performance report
18. Material audit adjustment in the Annual Performance Report were identified during the audit all of which were corrected
by management.
Compliance with laws and regulations
19. I performed procedures to obtain evidence that the entity has complied with applicable laws and regulations regarding
financial matters, financial management and other related matters. My findings on material non-compliance with specific
matters in key applicable laws and regulations as set out in the General Notice issued in terms of the PAA are as follows:
Annual Financial Statements, Performance and Annual Reports
20. The material misstatements of non-current assets; current assets; liabilities and expenditure identified by the auditors in
the submitted Annual Financial Statements constituted non-compliance with the prescribed financial reporting framework
as required by section 29(1)(a) of the Companies Act. These misstatements were subsequently corrected, resulting in
the Annual Financial Statements receiving an unqualified audit opinion.
Internal control
21. I considered internal control relevant to my audit of the Annual Financial Statements, Annual Performance Information
Report and compliance with laws and regulations. The matters reported below under the fundamentals of internal control
are limited to the significant deficiencies that resulted in the findings on compliance with laws and regulations included
in this report.
Leadership
22. Leadership did not exercise sufficient oversight responsibility over financial statement preparation and related internal
controls resulting in Annual Financial Statements not prepared in accordance with the applicable financial reporting
framework.
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Financial and performance management
23. Management did not undertake adequate financial statement reviews to ensure the accuracy of the Annual Financial
Statements prior to the submission for audit purposes.
24. Management did not adequately review and monitor compliance with all applicable laws and regulations resulting in the
reported instances of non-compliance.

Johannesburg
31 July 2013
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Report of the Directors
for the year ended 31 March 2013
The Directors are pleased to submit their report, together with the GFC Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March
2013. The Annual Financial Statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern.
This basis presumes that funds will be available in the foreseeable future. Information regarding the going concern is disclosed
in note 21 to the Annual Financial Statements.
Service rendered by the entity
The GFC is an agency of the Gauteng Provincial Government tasked with the development and promotion of the audio‑visual
industry in the province.
Flowing from this mandate, the GFC’s core business is to facilitate and enhance the contribution of the industry to the growth
of the province.
General review
The GFC is a non-profit company (NPC) in terms of the Companies Act. Its main business is the promotion of the audio-visual
industry in Gauteng, with the delivery of professional film commission services and the support, facilitation and enhancement
of the contribution of the film industry to the economic growth of the province at its core. The business and activities of the
GFC for the year are reviewed by the Chief Executive Officer.
Registration as a public entity
Even though the Commission is still operating as an NPC, its listing as the GCIA is well under way and the legislative process
of listing as a public entity will commence in the next financial year. The business case and concept paper are being finalised
and will be submitted to the Provincial Treasury in line with all relevant requirements.

Business result summary
2013
R
Total revenue
Net loss for the year
Total assets
Accumulated surplus

23 453 000
(1 497 898)
6 012 718
4 205 546

2012
R
19 677 855
(2 297 025)
7 773 623
5 703 443
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Report of the Directors (continued)

Directors
The full list of Directors and their details can be viewed in Section C: Governance, on page 38.
Non-executive Directors do not have service contracts with the GFC, while the CEO, as the only the Executive Director,
has a five-year, fixed-term employment contract.
Registered address
56 Main Street
Anglovaal House
6th floor
Johannesburg

Postal address
PO Box 61601
Marshalltown
2107

Internal audit
Nexia SAB&T were appointed as Internal Auditors and are responsible for the internal audit function of the GFC. The company
assisted the GFC’s Management in improving continuous internal control.
Subsequent events
The Directors are not aware of any matter or circumstances arising since the end of the financial year.
Registration as a tax-exempt organisation
During the year under review, GFC met with the South African Revenue Service (SARS) to finalise its registration as a taxexempt organisation. The Commission was requested to resubmit its application with detailed supporting documents to qualify
it for exemption as a public benefit organisation in terms of Section 30(1) of the Income Tax Act, Act No. 58 of 1962. The
Commission must conduct public benefit activities as approved by the Minister and listed in Schedule 9 to the Act, and must
comply with the provision of Section 30(3) of the Act. The GFC resubmitted its application in line with the requirements of
SARS and is awaiting feedback.

L Kepe
Chairperson
31 May 2013
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Statement of Financial Position
AS AT 31 March 2013

Notes

2013
R

2012
R

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Investments

2
3
4

1 261 574
1 154 303
107 271
-

570 250
487 894
49 749
32 607

Current assets
Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

5
6

4 751 144
449 197
4 301 947

7 203 373
450 614
6 752 759

6 012 718

7 773 623

4 205 545

5 703 443

TOTAL ASSETS
EQUITY AND LIABILTIES
EQUITY
Accumulated surplus
Non-current liabilities
Long-term finance lease liability

9

217 646

45 836

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Current portion of long-term finance liability
Provisions

8
9
10

1 589 527
793 335
48 488
747 704

2 024 344
1 642 346
17 937
364 061

6 012 718

7 773 623

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
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Statement of Comprehensive Income
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2013

Notes
Government grants
Other income
Operating expenses
Operating loss
Interest income
Finance costs
Loss before taxation
Taxation
Loss for the year
Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive loss for the year

12
13
14
15
16
17

2013
R
23 453 000
72 536
(25 264 819)
(1 739 283)
281 377
(39 991)
(1 497 898)
(1 497 898)
(1 497 898)

2012
R
19 667 855
11 050
22 363 306
(2 684 401)
431 255
(43 879)
(2 297 025)
(2 297 025)
(2 297 025)

Statement of Changes in Equity
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2013
R
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Balance at 01 April 2011
Total comprehensive loss for the year
Balance at 31 March 2012

8 000 468
(2 297 025)
5 703 443

Total comprehensive loss for the year
Balance at 31 March 2013

(1 497 898)
4 205 545
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Cash Flow Statement
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2013

Notes
Grants received from grantors
Cash paid to suppliers and employees
Cash utilised from operations
Interest received
Finance cost
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from operations
Cash outflows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of intangible assets
Investments
Proceeds from investments disposed
Investments reclassified during the current year

18

2
3

Cash flow from financing activities
Finance lease payments during the year
Cash flow from financing activities
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents for the year
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

5

2013
R

2012
R

22 991 247
(24 962 040)
(1 970 793)
281,377
(39 991)
(1 729 407)

18 721 905
(20 915 882)
(2 193 977)
431 255
(43 879)
(1 806 601)

(923 767)
(881 033)
(75 341)
32 607

5 009 569
(168 760)
36
5 178 293
-

(202 362)
(202 362)

(11 321)
(11 321)

(2 450 812)
6,752,759
4 301 947

3 191 649
3 561 110
6 752 759
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Notes to the Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2013
1. Accounting Policies
1.1 Presentation of Annual Financial Statements
The Annual Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with IFRS and the Companies Act, Act No. 71 of 2008.
The statements were prepared on the historical basis, except for the measurement of certain financial instruments at fair
value, and incorporate the principal accounting policies set out below. The statements are presented in South African Rand.
The accounting policies are consistent with those used in the previous financial year, except for the changes set out in note 24,
first time adoption of IFRS.
1.1.1 Significant judgements and sources of uncertainty estimation
In preparing the Annual Financial Statements, Management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
amounts represented and their related disclosures. The use of available information and the application of judgement are
inherent in the formation of estimates. Actual future results can differ from those estimates which may be material to the
Annual Financial Statements. Significant judgements include:
Trade receivables and loans and receivables
The GFC assesses its trade receivables for impairment at the end of each reporting period. In determining whether an
impairment loss should be recorded in profit or loss, it makes judgements as to whether there is observable data indicating
a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flow from financial assets.
Provisions
Provisions were raised and Management determined estimates based on the information available. Additional disclosures of
these estimates of provision are disclosed in note 10.
1.1.2 Property, plant and equipment
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset when:
•
•

It is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the company; and
The cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Property, plant and equipment are initially measured at cost. Cost includes costs incurred initially to acquire or construct an
item of property, plant and equipment and costs subsequently incurred to add to, replace part of, or service it. If a replacement
cost is recognised in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment, the carrying amount of the replaced
part is derecognised.
Property, plant and equipment is carried at the cost of dismantling and removing the item. The cost for restoring the site on
which it is located is also included in the cost of property, plant and equipment.
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Property, plant and equipment is also carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
The useful life of each item of property, plant and equipment has been assessed as follows:
Item		Average useful life
Computer hardware		Three years
Capitalised lease assets		Five years
Office furniture		Five years
Leasehold improvements		Five years
Office equipment		Three years
The residual value, useful life and depreciation method for each asset are reviewed at the end of each reporting period. If the
expectations differ from previous estimates, the change is accounted for as a change in accounting estimate.
The depreciation charge for each period is recognised in profit or loss, unless included in the carrying amount of another asset.
The gain or loss arising from derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is included in profit or loss when the
item is derecognised. The gain or loss arising from derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the item.
1.1.3 Intangible assets
An intangible asset is recognised when:
•
•

It is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the company; and
The cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost. Expenditure on research (or on the research phase of an internal project) is
recognised as an expense when it is incurred.
An intangible asset arising from developments (or from the development phase of an internal project) is recognised when:
•
•
•
•
•
•

It is technically feasible to complete the asset so that it will be available for sale or use;
There is an intention to complete and use or sell it;
It can be used or sold;
It will generate probable future economic benefits;
There are available technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell the asset;
and
The expenditure attributable to the asset during its development can be measured reliably.

Intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses.
An intangible asset is regarded as having an indefinite useful life when, based on all relevant factors, there is no foreseeable limit
to the period over which the asset is expected to generate net cash inflow. Amortisation is not provided for these intangible
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assets, but they are tested for impairment annually and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired. For
all other intangible assets, amortisation is provided on the straight-line basis over the useful life.
The amortisation period and the method of recognising intangible assets are reviewed at the end of each financial year.
Reassessing the useful life of an intangible asset with a finite useful life after it has been classified as infinite indicates that the
asset may be impaired. As a result, the asset is tested for impairment and the remaining carrying amount is amortised over
its useful life.
Internally generated brands, mastheads, publishing titles, customer lists and similar items are not recognised as intangible assets.
Amortisation to write down the intangible asset on the straight-line basis to their residual values is provided as follows:
Item	Useful life
Computer software
Three years
1.1.4 Financial instruments
Classification
The GFC classifies financial assets and financial liabilities in the following categories:
•
•

Loans and receivables; and
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost.

Classification depends on the purpose for which the financial instruments were obtained or incurred and takes place at initial
recognition. Classification is re-assessed on an annual basis, except for derivatives and financial assets designated at fair value
through profit or loss, which shall not be classified from the fair value through profit or loss category.
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial instruments are initially recognised when the GFC becomes party to the contractual provision of the instrument.
The GFC classifies financial instruments, or their components, as financial assets, a financial liability or an equity instrument
on initial recognition in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements.
Subsequent measurements
Financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently measured at fair value, with gains and losses arising
from changes in fair value included in profit or loss for the period.
Loans and receivables are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, less accumulated
impairment losses.
Financial liabilities at amortised cost are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.
Trade and other receivables
Trade receivables are measured at fair value at initial recognition, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate method. Appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts are recognised in profit or loss
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when there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired. Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, the probability that the
debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial organisation, and default or delinquency in payments (more than 30 days overdue)
are considered indicators that the trade receivable is impaired. The allowances recognised are measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flow discounted at the effective interest
rate, which is calculated at initial recognition.
The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account, and the amount of the loss is recognised
in profit or loss with operating expenses. When a trade receivable is uncollectable, it is written off against the allowance
account for trade receivables. The subsequent recovery of amounts previously written off is recognised against operating
expenses in profit or loss.
Trade and other receivables are classified as loans and receivables.
Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are initially measured at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate method.
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, demand deposits and other short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible to a known cash amount and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. These are initially and
subsequently recorded at fair value.
1.1.5 Leases
A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership. A lease is
classified as an operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership.
Finance leases – lessee
Finance leases are recognised as assets and liabilities in the Statement of Financial Position at amounts equal to the fair value of
the leased property or machinery, or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability
to the lessor is included in the Statement of Financial Position as a finance lease obligation.
The discount rate used in calculating the present value of the minimum lease payment is the interest rate implicit in the lease.
The lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and the reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance
charge is allocated to each period during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of the remaining balance
of the liability.
Operating lease
Operating leases are leases where payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The
difference between the amount recognised as an expense and the contractual payments is recognised as an operating lease
asset. This liability is not discounted.
Any contingent rent is expensed in the period it is incurred.
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1.1.6 Impairment of assets
The GFC assesses whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired at the end of each reporting period.
If any such indication exists, it estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. If it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs is determined.
The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the higher of its fair value less cost to sell and its value in use.
If the recoverable amount of an asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount. That reduction is an impairment loss.
The impairment loss of assets carried at cost less any accumulated depreciation or amortisation is immediately recognised in
profit or loss. Any impairment loss of a revalued asset is treated as a revaluation decrease.
At each reporting date, the GFC assesses whether there is any indication that an impairment loss previously recognised for
assets other than goodwill may no longer exist or may have decreased. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amounts
of those assets are estimated.
The increased carrying amount of an asset other than goodwill, attributable to a reversal of an impairment loss, does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior periods.
A reversal of the impairment loss of assets carried at cost less accumulated depreciation or amortisation other than goodwill
is immediately recognised in profit or loss. Any reversal impairment loss of a revalued asset is treated as a revaluation increase.
1.1.7 Employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits
The cost of short-term employee benefits (those payable within twelve months after a service is rendered, such as paid
vacation leave and sick leave, bonuses, and non-monetary benefits such as medical care), are recognised in the period in
which the service is rendered and are not discounted.
Defined contribution plans
Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are charged as an expense as they fall due.
Payments made to industry-managed (or state) retirement benefit schemes are dealt with as defined contribution plans where
the Commission’s obligation under the scheme is equivalent to that arising in a defined contribution retirement benefit plan.
1.1.8 Provisions and contingencies
Provisions are recognised when:
•
•
•
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The GFC has a present obligation as a result of a past event;
It is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation; and
A reliable estimate can be made of the obligation.
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The provision amount is the present value of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the obligation.
Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a provision is expected to be reimbursed by another party, the
reimbursement will be recognised when, and only when, it is almost certain that reimbursement will be received if the
Commission settles the obligation. The reimbursement shall be treated as a separate asset. The amount recognised for the
reimbursement shall not exceed the amount of the provision.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.
If an entity has a contract that is onerous, the present obligation under contract shall be recognised and measured as a provision.
Contingent assets and liabilities are not recognised. Contingencies are disclosed in note 18.
1.1.9 Government grants
Government grants are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that:
•
•

The GFC will comply with the conditions attaching to them; and
The grant will be received.

Government grants are recognised as income over the periods necessary to match them with the related cost they are
intended to compensate.
A government grant that becomes a receivable as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred, or for the purpose
of giving immediate financial support to the entity with no future related cost, is recognised as income for the period in which
it becomes receivable.
Government grants relating to assets, including non-monetary grants at fair value, are presented in the Statement of Financial
Position by setting up the grant as deferred income or by deducting the grant in arriving at the carrying amount of the asset.
Grant-related income
Repayment of a grant-related to income is first applied against any unamortised deferred credit set up in respect of the grant
to the extent that the repayment exceeds any such deferred credit, or where no deferred credit exists. The repayment is
immediately recognised as an expense.
Repayment of grants related to an asset is recorded by increasing the carrying amount of the asset or reducing the deferred
income balance by the amount repayable. The cumulative additional depreciation that would have been recognised to date
as an expense in the absence of the grant is immediately recognised as an expense.
1.1.10 Revenue
Interest is recognised in profit or loss using the effective interest rate method.
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1.2 New standards and interpretations
1.2.1 Standards and interpretations not yet effective
The GFC has chosen not to early adopt the following standards and interpretations, which have been published and are
mandatory for companies with accounting periods beginning on or after 01 April 2013.
IFRS 9: Financial instruments
This new standard is the first phase of a three-phase project to replace International Accounting Standard (IAS) 39: Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. To date, the standard includes chapters for classification, measurement and
derecognition of financial assets and liabilities. The following are main changes from IAS 39:
•
•

•
•

•

•
•

•
•

Financial assets will be categorised as those subsequently measured at fair value or at amortised cost;
Financial assets at amortised cost are those financial assets where the business model for managing the asset is to hold
the asset to collect contractual cash flow (where the contractual cash flow represents payment of principal and interest
only). All other financial assets are to be subsequently measured at fair value;
Under certain circumstances, financial assets may be designated as at fair value;
IFRS 9 applies to hybrid contracts where the host contract is an asset within the scope of IFRS 9 or when the whole
instrument is classified in accordance with IFRS 9, without separation of the embedded derivatives. In other circumstances,
the provision of IAS 39 still applies;
Voluntary reclassification of financial assets is prohibited. Financial assets shall be reclassified if the entity changes business
models for the management of financial assets. In such circumstances, reclassification takes place prospectively from the
beginning of the first reporting period after the date of change of the business model;
Financial liabilities shall not be reclassified;
Investment equity instruments may be measured at fair value through other comprehensive income. When such an
election is made, it may not subsequently be revoked, and gains and losses accumulated in equity are not recycled to
profit or loss on derecognition of investment. The election may be made per individual investment;
IFRS 9 does not allow investments in equity instruments to be measured at cost; and
The classification category for financial liabilities remains unchanged. However, where a financial liability is designated
as at fair value through profit or loss, the change in fair value attributable to changes in the liability’s credit risk shall be
presented in other comprehensive income. This excludes situations where such presentation will create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch, in which case the full fair value adjustment shall be recognised in profit or loss.

The effective date of the standard is for years beginning on or after 01 January 2013. The GFC expects to adopt the standard
in its 2013/14 Annual Financial Statements.
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IFRS 13: Fair value measurement
New standard setting out guidance on the measurement and disclosures of items measured at fair value or required to be
disclosed as fair value in terms of other IFRS items.
The effective date of the standard is for years beginning on or after 01 January 2013. The GFC expects to adopt the standard
in its 2013/14 Annual Financial Statements.
IAS 19: Employee benefits revised
Financial assets at amortised cost:
•

•
•
•

Required recognition of changes in the net defined benefit liability/(asset) including immediate recognition of the defined
benefit cost, disaggregation of defined cost into components, recognition of remeasurements in other comprehensive
income, plan amendments, curtailments and settlements.
Introduce enhanced disclosures about defined benefit plans.
Modify accounting for termination benefits, including distinguishing benefits provided the exchange for service and benefits
exchanged for the termination of employment and effect the recognition and measurement of termination benefits.
Clarification of miscellaneous issues, including the classification of employee benefits, current estimates of mortality rates,
tax and administration costs and risk sharing and conditional indexation features.

The effective date of the amendments is for years beginning on or after 01 January 2013.
The GFC expects to adopt the amendment for the first time in 2013/14 Annual Financial Statements.
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2. Property, plant and equipment

76

Computer
hardware
R

Office
furniture
R

2013
Carrying amount at beginning
of period
Cost at 01 April 2012
Accumulated depreciation
Additions
Assets written off cost
Assets written off
Depreciation
Carrying amount
Gross carrying amount
Accumulated depreciation

301 664
882 187
(580 523)
252 796
(67 405)
487 055
1 134 984
(647 929)

102 018
570 275
(468 257)
104 325
(53 862)
44 895
(40 568)
156 126
620 738
(464 612)

55 877
162 374
(106 497)
31 103
(14 031)
8 917
(5 937)
75 929
179 445
(103 516)

28 334
85 000
(56 666)
258 800
(43 048)
244 086
343 800
(99 714)

1
301 857
(301 856)
234 009
(301 857)
301 856
(42 902)
191 107
234 009
(42 902)

487 894
2 001 693
(1 513 799)
881 033
(369 750)
354 986
(199 860)
1 154 303
2 512 976
(1 358 673)

2012
Carrying amount at beginning
of period
Cost at 01 April 2011
Accumulated depreciation
Additions
Depreciation
Carrying amount
Gross carrying amount
Accumulated depreciation

271 048
741 329
(470 281)
140 858
(110 242)
301 664
882 187
(580 523)

125 917
570 275
(444 358)
(23 899)
102 018
570 275
(468 257)

49 525
134 472
(84 947)
27 902
(21 550)
55 877
162 374
(106 497)

56 667
85 000
(28 333)
(28 333)
28 334
85 000
(56 666)

30 185
301 857
(271 672)
(30 184)
1
301 857
(301 856)

533 342
1 832 933
(1 299 591)
168 760
(214 208)
487 894
2 001 693
(1 513 799)
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Office
equipment
R

Capitalised
leased asset
R

Leasehold
improvements
R

Total
R

2013
R
3. Intangible assets
Computer software
Carrying amount at beginning of the year
Cost at 01 April 2012
Accumulated depreciation
Additions
Depreciation
Carrying amount at end of the year
Gross carrying amount
Accumulated depreciation
4. Investments
Bank guarantee
Interest capitalised

5. Trade and other receivables
SARS – Value-Added Tax
Prepaid expenses
Sundry debtors
Rental deposit

49 749
195 532
(145 783)
75 341
(17 819)
107 271
270 873
(163 602)

2012
R

71 892
195 532
(123 640)
(22 145)
49 749
195 532
(145 783)

-

32 571
36
32 607

136 075
30 419
52 825
229 878
449 197

425 240
1 791
23 583
450 614

The carrying value of trade and other receivables approximates the fair value.
The rental deposit was as the result of the GFC’s relocation to 56 Main Street. The deposit is a contractual obligation with
the landlord.
Trade and other receivables past due but not impaired
Trade and other receivables which are less than one month past due are not considered to be impaired. The GFC does not
have any trade debtors.
Trade and other receivables impaired.
As at 31 March 2013 R463 169 (2011/12: R-) was written off. This relates to the credit card and an amount relating to VAT
that has been determined to be irrecoverable.
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2013
R

2012
R

4 268 925
32 640
382
4 301 947

6 692 615
3 000
57 144
6 752 759

4 301 947
449 197
4 751 144

6 752 759
450 614
7 203 373

13 730
42 264
243 843
274 003
219 495
793 335

1 046 315
203 000
173 536
219 495
1 642 346

6. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand and bank balances. Cash and cash
equivalents included in the Cash Flow Statement comprise the following balance
sheet amounts:
Cash at bank – Current
– Call
Cash on hand
Credit card

The carrying value of cash and cash equivalents approximates the fair value.
7. Financial assets by category
The accounting policies for financial instruments have been applied to the line items
below:
Loans and receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables

8. Trade and other payables
Projects
Credit card
Creditors
Accruals – Medical
– Operating lease
– Other
Phase II – Project Gaullywood
The carrying value of trade and other payables approximates the fair value.

9. Long-term bearing borrowings – finance lease
The finance lease is secured by capitalised lease assets (note 2). GFC leased two photocopying machines from Panasonic.
The contract was signed in July 2012, and the first instalment was paid in August 2012. The lease agreements provide for five
years’ payments of R71 400 annually payable in arrears. The agreement does not provide for contingent rental payments.
Ownership will remain with Panasonic upon the expiry of the lease contract.
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Reconciliation between the total minimum lease payments and their present value
Up to one
year
R

One to five
years
R

Total
R

2013
Minimum lease payments
Finance cost
Present value

81 396
(32 908)
48 488

271 320
(53 674)
217 646

352 716
(86 583)
266 134

2012
Minimum lease payments
Finance cost
Present value

55 200
(37 263)
17 937

82 800
(36 964)
45 836

138 000
(74 227)
63 773

10. Provisions

Leave pay provisions
Performance bonus provisions

Opening
balance
R
Reconciliation of provisions 2013
Leave pay provision
Bonus provision
Present value

364 061
364 061

Reconciliation of provisions 2012
Leave pay provision

-

Utilised during
the year
R

(31 722)
(31 722)

-

2013
R

2012
R

605 254
142 450
747 704

364 061
364 061

Raised
R

Total
R

272 915
142 450
415 365

605 254
142 450
747 704

364 061

364 061
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2013
R

2012
R

793 335
266 134
1 059 469

1 642 346
63 773
1 706 119

23 453 000
23 453 000

18 747 000
920 855
19 667 855

12 550
59 986
72 536

11 050
11 050

11. Financial liability by category
The accounting policies for financial instruments have been applied to the items below.
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Trade and other payables
Finance lease

12. Government Grants
Government grants arise from the following events and transactions:
Government grant – Department of Sport, Art, Culture and Recreation
Deferred income recognised in the current year

13. Other income
Other income arises from the following events and transactions:
Social income
Other income
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Notes

2013
R

2012
R

217 679
67 405
17 819
5 937
40 568
43 048
42 902
1 547 762
750
14 762
403 979
59 190
14 044 555
724 073
126 162

236 354
110 242
22 145
21 550
23 899
28 333
30 184
1 275 017
260
11 307 904
707 611
116 132

312 784
264 587
20 540
1 254 402
121 828
1 132 574

316 052
262 927
12 500
1 865 987
149 370
1 716 617

1 256 936
1 116 936
140 000

1 565 953
1 501 953
64 000

14. Operating loss
The net deficit is stated after taking the following items into account:
Depreciation
Computer hardware
Computer software
Office equipment
Office furniture
Capitalised lease assets
Leasehold improvements
Provident fund
Repairs and maintenance
Assets written off
Provision for bad debts – VAT
Provision for bad debts – Credit card
Employee costs
Professional fees
Accounting
Audit fee
External Auditors
Internal Auditors
Consultants
Operating lease charges
Equipment
Property
14.1 Directors’ emoluments
Executive Directors
Non-executive Directors

14.2
14.3

14.2 Executive Directors’ emoluments

Year

Salary
R

Leave pay
R

Bonus
R

Medical aid
R

Provident
fund
R

Total
R

Mr M Masina

2013

969 867

-

-

24 752

122 317

1 116 936

Mr T Tselane

2012

979 211

118 015

169 125

40 510

195 092

1 501 953
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14. Operating loss (Continued)
14.3 Non-executive Directors’ emoluments

Ms S Bulane-Hopa
Mr P Diamond
Mr N Kekana
Mr L Kepe
Mr K Khoza
Mr J Marnitz
Ms B Mhaga
Ms M Molotsi
Ms Z Nzalo
Mr T Tselane
Mr M Vundla
Total

2013
R

2012
R

20 000
28 000
16 000
20 000
12 000
36 000
8 000
140 000

20 000
4 000
12 000
8 000
12 000
4 000
4 000
64 000

14.4 Senior Management emoluments

82

Salary
R

Leave pay
R

Bonus
R

Medical aid
R

Provident
fund
R

Total
R

2013
Mr N Kodwa
Mr E Maluleke
Mr T Masudubele
Ms A Mokoena
Total

643 857
882 782
824 869
526 968
2 878 476

-

46 126
88 554
79 056
35 351
249 087

51 064
58 810
28 425
138 299

125 938
158 589
130 487
102 249
517 263

866 985
1 188 735
1 062 837
664 568
3 783 125

2012
Mr E Maluleke
Mr T Masudubele
Total

827 114
767 930
1 595 044

-

82 916
74 023
156 939

53 800
26 224
80 024

149 265
126 590
275 855

1 113 095
994 767
2 107 862
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15. Interest income
Interest income – Bank
16. Finance cost
Long-term bearing borrowings – Finance lease

2013
R

2012
R

281 377

431 255

39 991

43 879

17. Taxation
The GFC is currently incorporated as a NPC, but has applied to SARS for tax exemption
in terms of Section 10(1) (zG) of the Income Tax Act, Act No. 58 of 1962, and is
awaiting a response.
18. 	Reconciliation of net loss before taxation to cash
generated from operations
Net loss before taxation
Adjusted for items separately disclosed in the Cash Flow Statement
Interest received
Finance cost
Adjusted for items not involving the flow of cash and cash equivalents
Depreciation
Irrecoverable receivables – VAT and credit card
Assets written off
Movement in provisions
Adjusted for changes in working capital
Decrease in accounts receivable
(Decrease) in accounts payable
Cash utilised from operations

(1 497 898)

(2 297 025)

(241 386)
(281 377)
39 991

(387 376)
(431 255)
43 879

1 079 254
217 679
463 169
14 762
383 644
(1 310 763)
(461 752)
(849 011)
(1 970 793)

236 354
236 354
254 070
(36 143)
290 213
(2 193 977)

19. Contingent liability
Contingent liability relates to an amount which SARS might charge the Gauteng Film Commission as penalties for non-submission
of tax returns. The amount cannot be estimated. It should be noted that the income of the Commission falls within the scope
of Section 10(1)(y) of the Income Tax Act, which stipulates that an exemption will be levied on “any government grant or
government scrapping payments received or accrued in terms of any programme or scheme which has been approved in
terms of the national annual budget process and has been identified by the Minister by notice in the Gazette with effect from
the date specified by the Minister in the notice (including any date that precedes the date of such notice)”.
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2013
R

2012
R

6 277 244
1 320 794
4 956 450

52 563
43 340
9 223

20. Operating lease commitment
Not later than one year
Later than one year, but not later than five years

Operating lease commitments represent rentals payable for GFC’s premises which expire on 31 May 2017. They also include
rentals paid for office equipment. The operating lease is accounted for on the straight-line basis.
21. Going concern
The GFC is currently a going concern and is set to remain so in future. The transformation of the Commission into the GCIA
will have an impact on its current status, as its mandate will change. Never the less, the Agency will continue as a going concern.
22. Related party transactions
During the year under review, the GFC concluded the following related party transactions with the DSACR and the EDD:

Transactions:
Gauteng Department of Sport, Arts, Culture and Recreation
Balances:
Phase II – Project Gaullywood

2013
R

2012
R

23 453 000

18 747 000

219 495

219 495

23. Commitments
Commitments are made in terms of the GFC’s mandate, which is to develop and promote the audio-visual industry in Gauteng.
The GFC’s core business is to facilitate and enhance the contribution of industry to the economic growth of the province.

Marketing, advocacy and strategy
SMR Marketing (Pty) Ltd
MSV Holdings (Pty) Ltd
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2013
R

2012
R

78 000
150 000
228 000

-

The commitments to SMR Marketing (Pty) Ltd are for the development of the Marketing and Communications Strategy.
During the year under review, R117 000 was paid to the consultants.
The commitment to MSV Holdings (Pty) Ltd is for the realignment and listing of GFC as a public entity. During the year under
review, R150 000 was paid to the consultants.

Project funding commitments
Z’Mele Productions
Mmonday Productions
Luju Pictures and Productions
Mannequin Films
Big Fish School of Digital Filmmakers
Kasi Distribution
Blue Marble Entertainment
Vee K Productions
Lasting Impression Media and Marketing
NEMISA Productions

2013
R

2012
R

15 000
100 000
142 500
75 000
198 018
25 000
50 000
75 000
250 000
300 000
1 230 518

-

The obligation to Z’Mele Productions was approved by the CEO, and R15 000 was paid to the production company.
The obligation to Mmonday Productions was approved by the CEO, and R100 000 was paid to the production company.
The obligation to Luju Pictures and Productions was approved by the CEO, and R142 500 was paid to the production company.
The obligation to Mannequin Films was approved by the CEO, and R75 000 was paid to the production company.
The obligation to Big Fish School of Digital Filmmakers was approved by the CEO.
The obligation to Kasi Distribution was approved by the CEO, and R50 000 was paid to the production company.
The obligation to Blue Marble Entertainment was approved by the CEO, and R50 000 was paid to the production company.
The obligation to Vee K Productions was approved by the CEO, and R75 000 was paid to the production company.
The obligation to Lasting Impression Media and Marketing was approved by the CEO, and R250 000 was paid to the
production company.
The obligation to NEMISA Productions was approved by the CEO, and R150 000 was paid to the production company.
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24. First time adoption of IFRS
The GFC has applied IFRS 1: First Time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards, to provide a starting point
for reporting these standards. In the previous financial year, the GFC applied the South African Statements of Generally
Recognised Accounting Practices (GRAP). This was determined to be incorrect in the current financial year, as the Commission
is not formally listed as a public entity.
In principle, these standards have been applied retrospectively and the 2012 comparatives contained in the Annual Financial
Statements differ from those published in the statements published for the year ended 31 March 2012.
As per IAS 1: Presentation of Financial Statements, all material items must be disclosed on the face of the Statement of
Financial Position. In the previous year, provision for leave was included as part of payables. This has been reclassified and has
been shown as a separate balance in the current year.
25. Risk management
Capital risk management
The Commission’s objectives when managing capital risks are to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern in order
to provide benefits for stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure.
The capital structure of the GFC consists of debt, which includes the cash and cash equivalents disclosed in note 6.
Financial risk management
The Commission’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, namely interest rate, credit and liquidity risk. Its overall risk
management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects
on the Commission’s financial performance.
Interest rate risk
The Commission’s interest rate risk arises from short-term investments. These investments are issued at variables rates and
expose the GFC to cash flow interest rate risk.
Based on the simulations performed, the impact of post-tax loss of a 0.1% shift would be a maximum decrease of R1 498.
Credit risk
Credit risk consists mainly of cash deposits, cash equivalents and trade receivables. The GFC only deposits cash with major
banks with high quality credit standing and limits its exposure to any one counterparty.
Liquidity risk
The GFC‘s liquidity risk exists mainly as a result of the funds needed to cover future commitments. It manages liquidity risk
through an ongoing review of future commitments and credit facilities.
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The table below analyses the Commission’s financial liabilities and net-settled derivative financial liabilities and groups these into
relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the date of Statement of Financial Position to the contractual
maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flow. Balances due within twelve
months equal their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not significant.
Less than
one year

Between two
and five years

2013
Trade and other payables
Finance lease

793 335
48 488

217 644

2012
Trade and other payables
Finance lease

1 642 346
17 937

45 836

2013
R

2012
R

23 453 000

19 667 855

12 550
59 985
72 536
(25 264 819)
(1 737 283)
281 377
(39 991)
(1 497 898)
(1 497 898)

11 050
11 050
(22 363 306)
(2 684 401)
431 255
(43 879)
(2 297 025)
(2 297 025)

Detailed statement of comprehensive income
Notes
Revenue
Other income
Social income
Other income

12
13

Operating expenses
Operating loss
Interest income
Finance costs
Loss before taxation
Taxation
Loss for the year

26
14
15
16
17
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26. Operating expenses

Depreciation
Bank charges
Filing and archiving services
Insurance
Resource Centre
CEO corporate entertainment
Creative Industry Agency
Strategy development – Phase II
Employee costs
Office equipment maintenance
Office rental
Staff parking
Water and electricity charge
Irrecoverable receivables
Organisational development cost
Staff development cost
Study assistance cost
Employee wellness
Expansion and export of local content
Film content development and distribution
Talent management and mentorship
Development and maintenance of IT
Office security
Audit Committee fees
Directors’ remuneration
Remuneration Committee
Bid Committee
Legal fees
Refreshments and meetings
Auxiliary services
Training and development – Board
Employment survey
‘Made in GP’ campaigns
Annual Report
PR and communication
Relationship marketing
Film content export platform
Film location database
Hosting and maintenance of website
Web-based and ad hoc content development
Loss on assets written off
Courier and cartage costs
Printing – general
Stationery
Professional fees
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2013
R

2012
R

217 679
20 197
14 066
134 294
11 390
306 430
14 044 554
750
1 132 573
221 582
37 850
463 170
142 606
164 950
103 867
3 874
625 549
2 693 389
616 390
324 091
19 793
22 000
140 000
20 000
4 000
20 614
870 334
19 990
13 159
348 713
187 532
86 109
102 632
897 395
92 460
331 371
14 762
15 387
18 113
37 129
724 073

236 354
20 957
11 032
117 772
9 680
92 846
920 855
11 307 904
260
1 761 617
52 850
56 895
145 501
58 309
119 182
16 450
562 268
2 574 948
813 571
498 253
22 134
33 000
72 000
16 000
3 130
14 850
610 856
30 000
503 523
155 059
98 096
38 500
277 709
134 550
101 250
90 455
30 152
10 122
36 805
707 611

25 264 819

22 363 306

The Union Buildings, Pretoria

K-10723 [www.kashan.co.za]

Gauteng Film Commission
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South Africa
Tel: +27 (0)11 833 0409
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Email: info@gautengfilm.org.za
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Marshalltown
2107

www.gautengfilm.co.za

